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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
to any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”), having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2) there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
M

Evershine Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited) (the “Company”) is principally
engaged in investment holdings. The subsidiaries of the Company
(together with the Company, the “Group”) are engaged in the
provision of travel agent services, advertising and marketing
services, fashion garment trading and mobile application business
in Hong Kong during the year under review.

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries:

*  Xuzhou China International Travel Service Limited*

* Hong Kong Marketing Service Limited

» Patalogue Limited

*  For Identification Purpose Only
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
LFRIRIB

The following is the organisation structure of the Group

(with principal subsidiaries only):
As at 31 December 2014:
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFIEH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wenbei (Chairman)
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Mr. He Qinglong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Chi Chung (Solicitor, Hong Kong)
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Wu Wenbei

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Wenbei
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa
Mr. He Qinglong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa

Mr. He Qinglong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Mr. He Qinglong

AUDITORS

Elite Partners CPA Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFIEH

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
20 Pedder Street
Central, Hong Kong

Wing Hang Bank, Limited
161 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Room A, 9th Floor

Fortis Tower

77-79 Gloucester Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.8022hk.com
STOCK CODE

8022
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors, | hereby present
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF 2014 FISCAL YEAR

Turnover of the Group for 2014 was approximately HK$46 million
which increased by 39% as compared to approximately HK$33
million last year. Compared to a loss for the year of HK$55 million
in 2013, a loss for the year of HK$23 million was recorded. Loss
per share was approximately 3.56 HK cents, compared to a loss of
31.07 HK cents per share in 2013. The Board does not recommend
any dividend payment for 2014.

OVERVIEW FOR 2014 OPERATION AND PROSPECT

During the year, the Company has changed its name from TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited to Evershine Group Holdings Limited.
This name change provides us a new image moving forward and
signifies a new direction and strategy of the Group — which is to
increase synergy among the Group’s core businesses and seek
new revenue sources and favorable opportunities by ways of
acquisitions and capital investment.

The operation of the travel agency business has been profitable
last year. In light of the competitive nature and increasingly high
operational costs in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), it
is not an easy task to maintain a steady growth in the business. We
are fortunate to have an experienced and dedicated team to keep
the business on track. We will continue to take a prudent approach
in further developing of the travel agency business.

Marketing and advertising business have recorded a loss in
2014 due to increasing operational cost. The management team
understands these concerns and is in the course of reviewing
the business plans and revenue model in addition to exploring
collaboration opportunities to enhance the profitability of this
business segment.

Furthermore, wide-ranging efforts have been made in exploring
new ideas and developing new products and businesses through
acquisitions in order to tap into new market segments and grow
the Group’s customer base. As a result, the Group has completed
two acquisitions where both companies are engaged in the mobile
application business. We believe the mobile application industry
is booming at an exponential rate and these acquisitions will have
significant and positive contributions on the Group’s revenue in
the coming years. The Group will continue to seek investment
opportunities in mobile application businesses.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

In 2014, among other matters, the Group has proposed the issue of
280,068,452 new shares by way of rights issue where the proceeds
would be used to, among other things, repay the Group’s debts and
hence reduce the finance costs of the Group. While the Group is
striving to strengthen its capital base, our management team will
continue to take a prudent financial approach.

Looking to 2015, ongoing improvements in the global economy are
expected and this understanding will form the basis of developing
the Group’s business strategies moving forward. We will ensure
stable and healthy business growth by leveraging on our strengths
and experiences, while actively seeking investment opportunities in
various business segments.

The future is bright yet challenging. On behalf of the Board, |
would like to thank all the shareholders of the Company for their
continuing support and patronage. We shall dedicate all our efforts
for the best interests of the Company and the shareholders.

Wu Wenbei
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLE 5

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel agency business

The travel industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
has remained competitive last year. Our travel agency business
has been profitable in 2014 amongst this competitive environment.
We have maintained a high quality of service hence the number
of returning customers is growing steadily. As many individual
customers have become accustomed to using the growing
number of online platforms for purchasing tickets and booking
hotels for their travelling needs, we have shifted our focus on
serving travelling groups and loyal customers. By doing so, the
management believes that the travel agency business will continue
to contribute positively to the Group.

Advertising and marketing services

The performance of the advertising and marketing services has
been disappointing last year. This is mainly due to increasingly
high cost of operation and postponement and cancellation of
certain marketing projects due to the “occupying” motions in Hong
Kong. The management team is considering various options to
achieve higher margin and lower costs. During the year, we have
participated in creative projects such as micro film production for
marketing purposes. The management believes more business
opportunities will be derived from creative elements and will
eventually bring in substantial income.

Mobile application business

The mobile application business segment is a new contributor to
the revenue of the Group last year and the management team
believes the rapidly growing mobile application market will bring
forth huge business opportunities. Through acquisition, the Group
has participated in mobile game publishing and cloud marketing
business. The management is confident that mobile application
businesses will become a major contributor to the Group’s revenue
in the coming years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLE 5

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the total assets of the Group was
approximately HK$132 million (2013: HK$112 million), including
cash and bank balances and restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$9 million (2013: HK$6 million). The gearing ratio
of the Group expressed in total debt as a percentage of net assets
was 258.51% (2013: 88.17%).

Charges on Group’s Assets

On 11 December 2014, a secured and unguaranteed loan facility
amounting to HK$2,000,000 has been granted to the Group (“Loan
Facility”). The Loan Facility was secured by a charge over the entire
issued and paid up capital of a subsidiary of the Company — Argos
(China) Investment Limited. The interest rate is 1% over Prime
Lending Rate per annum.

The Group shall repay the Loan Facility upon expiry of 6 months
after the drawdown date.

The maturity date of the loan is on 24 June 2015.

Capital Structure

The number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2013 and 2014 was 560,136,904 shares. On 12 December 2014,
the Company proposed to raise approximately HK$84 million,
before expenses, by issuing 280,068,452 new shares (the “Rights
Shares”) to the qualifying shareholders of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$0.30 per Rights Share by way of rights
issue on the basis of one Rights Share for every two shares held
on 23 December 2014. 280,068,452 rights shares have been issued
on 9 February 2015. Please refer the Company’s announcements
dated 12 December 2014 and 6 February 2015 and the Company’s
prospectus dated 14 January 2015 for details. The number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report is 840,205,356
shares.

COMMITMENTS

The details of the capital commitments incurred during the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THRRLE S

VERY SUBSTANTIAL DISPOSAL OF 51%
SHAREHOLDING INTEREST IN FOUNTAIN CITY
HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 28 December 2012, Brilliant Reach Investments Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”) and
Diwang Limited (the “Vendor”), have agreed on the exercise by
the Purchaser of the Put Option which require the Vendor to
purchase 51% of the issued share capital of Fountain City Holdings
Limited (the “Disposed Company”) at the Option Exercise Price of
HK$58,650,000 (the “Disposal”) as the Vendor had acknowledged
that the Disposed Company was loss making.

The Disposed Company was a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Group. The principal business of the Disposed Company and its
subsidiaries includes (i) entertainment programme production; (ii)
events organization; and (iii) TV-series production.

The Disposal was approved by the holders (the “Shareholders”)
of the share(s) (the “Shares”) of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) of the Company held on 26 August
2013. Accordingly, completion of the Disposal shall take place on
or before 24 February 2014 which is 180 days after the Disposal
was approved by the Shareholders and the Option Exercise price
shall be satisfied by the Vendor to the Purchaser on the same day.
However, the Vendor has failed to effect payments of the Option
Exercise Price and the Loans pursuant to the Agreement and the
Verbal Agreement.

After negotiations with the Vendor and its guarantor (the
“Guarantor”), the parties entered into a deed of settlement
(the “Settlement Deed”) pursuant to which the Vendor and the
Guarantor jointly and severally covenant to the Purchaser that they
shall effect payment of the option exercise price and the Loans in
the aggregate amount of HK$64,894,000 by four equal instalment
payments of HK$16,223,500 each with the first instalment payment
to be made on or before 24 September 2014, the second intalment
payment to be made on or before 24 December 2014, the third
instalment payment to be made on or before 24 March 2015 and
the fourth payment to be on or before 24 June 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLE 5

On 30 December 2014, the Vendor effected partial payment of
HK$6,000,000 out of the aggregate amount of HK$64,894,000
pursuant to the Settlement Deed.

After negotiations with the Vendor and the Guarantor, the
parties have reached a settlement relating to the overdue of the
outstanding balance of the settlement sum of HK$58,894,000 (the
“Outstanding Settlement Sum”) and a supplemental deed (the
“Supplemental Deed”) was entered into among the Purchaser, the
Vendor and the Guarantor on 20 March 2015, pursuant to which
the Vendor and the Guarantor jointly and severally covenant to
the Purchaser that the Outstanding Settlement Sum shall be paid
and settled by two equal instalment payments of HK$29,447,000
each, payable on or before the expiration of six months and twelve
months from the date of the Supplemental Deed respectively.

The settlement was reached after arm’s length negotiations
between the Company, the Vendor and the Guarantor. In light
of the global financial crisis and economic slowdown, which has
adversely affected the ability of the Vendor and Guarantor to
perform their respective obligations under the Settlement Deed, and
the fact that the Vendor has made a payment of HK$6,000,000 on
30 December 2014 reassures that the Vendor has the intention to
settle the Outstanding Settlement Sum. The Company has decided
to not include interest accrued on the Outstanding Settlement Sum
in order to speed up the negotiation procedures. The Company
believes the entering into of the Supplemental Deed will save
legal and professional costs, however, the Company reserve it's
rights to commence legal proceedings against the Vendor and/
or the Guarantor if they fail to honour their payment obligations
under the Supplemental Deed. All the Directors including the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms
of the Supplemental Deed are fair and reasonable, are on normal
commercial terms and are in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole. The Company will provide periodic
updates by way of announcement regarding the Disposal as and
when appropriate.

Detail refer to the Company’s announcements dated 8 January
2013, 26 August 2013, 24 March 2014, 20 March 2015 and the
Company’s circular dated 8 August 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBE WL S

LAPSE OF THE ACQUISITION OF MASS APEX LIMITED

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4 December
2012, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Fame
Network Limited to acquire the entire issued share capital of the
Mass Apex Limited which principally engaged in the trading of raw
food material business in Hong Kong, from Mr. Ma Chun Loi (the
“Vendor I”) at a consideration of HK$68,000,000. As of 8 July 2013,
some of the conditions precedent to the Acquisition had not been
fulfilled, after negotiation between the Purchaser and the Vendor
I, the Board decided that the Long Stop Date would not be further
extended, accordingly, the Sale and Purchase Agreement lapsed
with effect from 5:00 p.m. on 8 July 2013. The Directors consider
that this would avoid further expenses to be incurred by the Group
and is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

Upon the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Vendor | shall refund
the sum of HK$2,000,000, being the deposit paid by the Purchaser
to Vendor |, despite the Company has repeatedly demanded for the
return of the Deposit, the Vendor | failed to return the Deposit, upon
the legal advice that the Company has obtained from its solicitors,
the Purchaser has commenced legal action against the Vendor |
at the Court of First Instance in the High Court of HKSAR on 30
October 2013 to claim for return of the Deposit.

On 11 December 2013, the Purchaser and the Vendor | entered
into a deed of settlement pursuant to which the Vendor | undertook
to refund the Deposit by 10 monthly instalments by issuing ten
post-dated cheques. On 19 December 2013, as the first cheque
dated 11 December 2013 was honoured, pursuant to the deed of
settlement, the Purchaser has filed a notice of discontinuance with
the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the HKSAR.

On 27 February 2015, the Company has instructed a legal
representative to issue a demand letter to the Vendor | in relation to
the breach of the deed of settlement and the outstanding balance
of HK$1,200,000. If the Vendor | does not agree to the demand,
the Company will reserve it's rights to commence legal proceedings
against the Vendor | to enforce its rights.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 26 November
2012, 4 December 2012, 27 December 2012, 25 January 2013, 8
February 2013, 8 March 2013, 8 April 2013, 8 May 2013, 7 June
2013, 9 July 2013, 18 July 2013, 2 August 2013, 7 August 2013,
18 October 2013, 30 October 2013, 11 December 2013 and 19
December 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MAJOR TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement (the
“Announcement”) dated 29 October 2013, the Company, through
its wholly owned subsidiary, Prosperous Link Investments Limited
proposed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Grace
Profit Corporations Limited which principally engaged in fashion
wholesale, distribution and trading business at the sales shares
and sale loan at an aggregate consideration of HK$100,000,000.
Shareholders and investors should note that Completion is subject
to various conditions as stated in the section headed “Conditions
Precedent” of the Announcement.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 29 July 2014,
the Company has terminated the transaction due to the conditions
precedent have not been fully fulfilled upon expiry of the long stop
date.

The Board considers that the termination will not have any material
adverse impact on the operation and financial position of the Group.

Detail refer to the Company’s announcements dated 18 July 2013,
29 October 2013, 19 November 2013, 3 December 2013, 19
December 2013, 30 January 2014, 21 February 2014, 21 March
2014, 25 April 2014, 23 May 2014, 25 June 2014 and 29 July 2014.

THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING IN
RELATION TO A PROPOSED ACQUISITION

On 5 December 2014, the Company and Starways Holding
Inc. (the “Prospective Vendor”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU”) in relation to the proposed acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Great Empire International Group
Limited (the “Target”). The Target indirectly holds a wholly-owned
subsidiary in the PRC, namely J®RYIT BREYHEMEAEEER
‘A|] which engages in tumor treatment technology development
and applications. The MOU is not legally binding with regard to the
proposed acquisition, and the proposed acquisition may or may
not proceed. Shareholders and investors are advised to exercise
caution when dealing in the Shares.

Details refer to the Company’s announcement dated 5 December
2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to profit from
operations of principal activities for the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The details of the non-adjusting post balance sheet events are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed, the Directors do not have any future plans for
material investment or capital assets.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Since most of the transactions, income and expenditure of the
Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi, no
hedging or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have
been implemented.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors are not aware of any
material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 43 (2013: 39) full-time
employees. The total of employee remuneration, including that of
the Directors, for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$4 million (2013: HK$4 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience
and the prevailing industry practice.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

Details of the remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLE 5

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme was adopted on 30 July 2001, amended on
2 December 2008 by the shareholders of the Company (the “Old
Scheme”) under which the Directors may, at their discretion, grant
options to themselves and any employees of the Group entitling
them to subscribe for shares of the Company. The Old Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”
which together with the Old Scheme, the “Share Option Schemes”)
was adopted on 9 May 2011 by the Shareholders. The purpose
of the New Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Company or its subsidiaries.

No options have been granted under the New Scheme since its
adoption. Details of the movements in the share options granted
and exercised during the year ended 31 December 2014 under the
Old Scheme are disclosed in the section of “Report of Directors”.

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 12 December 2014, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$84 million before expenses by issuing
280,068,452 new shares (the "Rights Shares") at the subscription
price of HK$0.30 per Rights Share to certain qualifying
shareholders by way of rights issue on the basis of one Rights
Share for every two shares of the Company held on the record
date (the “Rights Issue”). The net proceeds from the Rights Issue
were approximately HK$81 million, among which, (i) approximately
HK$43 million were used for the repayment of promissory notes;
(i) approximately HK$13 million were used for the settlement of a
purchase order of a subsidiary for a collection of fashion garments;
and (iii) approximately HK$25 million is used for general working
capital of the Group.

fE T &

ARARRRNR-ZZE-—FLtA=THREHN—1E
BRESE YR -2 N\F+ AR
BT ([E5TE ) - B - ESTHREREER
B REAGRAEBEARE - EREEE
RBANBRMS - EFFBCKL - MADAR
RER=ZF——FH BN BRANBRETS
(T#rat8) BREEBA[BRES) -
Bz BENREARRRREAGESRER K
RiE ERRBRRBRERSHAQANEMNE
DEMEHZER

REBE-Z-DNF+_A=+—-HLEFERN
REENEMRERTEZBREZSEBFE
RIEEESHRE |—HHRE -

FriSRIARR

RZZE-—NE+-A+=H  XAFAEZER
CHAOPEFERMRAAGARMDER —RHE
B BEEURBESRMAERRKRH0.30ET
B% T & &% IR R 217 280,068,452 B% 3 I% 17
([t R 12 1) - 51tk 5 4984,000,0005% 5T
(HIRRE AN 2 HETEHR (THR D - B4t
PR AT {8 X B 7 $584981,000,00078 7T » HAF (1)
43,000,000 Tt 2 AREZERGEERE ; (i)&
13,000,0005% T 2 AR B A BB 2 E B IE A
SRR B 2 ETEE 5 K (iii)#925,000,00058 7T
EREE-REEES -

Annual Report 2014 Z—Z—[UFEFHR 15



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
complied with most of the code provisions of the CG Code, save for
deviations from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 which are
explained below.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the statutory requirements and the CG
Code and align with the latest developments.

Board Composition and Board Practices

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised five Directors
including two executive Directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”), namely Mr. Wu Wenbei and Ms. Lin Yan Jenny; and
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company (the
“Independent Non-executive Directors”), namely, Ms. Lam Yuk
Ying, Elsa, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang and Mr. He Qinglong. There is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
amongst the Directors.

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and will be met as necessary. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Board held 4 regular meetings. The
Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) prepares minutes and keeps
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
meetings. The secretary of the meetings of the Company keeps the
minutes, which are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
are required to retire from office at each annual general meeting,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years.

According to the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term of
service. None of the Independent Non-executive Director have
entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company for a specific term of service but their appointments are
subject to retirement by rotation and offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting at least once for every three years in
accordance with the Articles of Association. The Company believes
such practice meets the same objective and no less exacting than
those prescribed under code provision A.4.1.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wu Wenbei was appointed as the chairman of the Company
(the “Chairman”) on 1 October 2014. The Board will keep reviewing
the current structure of the Board from time to time and should
a candidate with suitable knowledge, skill and experience be
identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the post of the
chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ”) as appropriate
and will make further announcement in due course. There is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
between the Chairman and the CEO and among the members of
the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company,
based on such confirmation, considers Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa, Mr.
Liu Kwong Sang and Mr. He Qinglong are independent.

Role and Functions of the Board

The Board and the management teams are committed to high
standards of corporate governance. The Board is responsible
for approving and monitoring business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and overseeing management. The
Board also focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
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The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations and management of the Group
to Executive Directors and senior management, and certain specific
responsibilities to the committees of the Company (the “Board
Committees”). The Board reserves certain key matters for its
approval including the Group’s long-term strategy, internal control,
annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial results and shareholder
communications, etc. Decisions of the Board are communicated to
the management through Executive Directors who have attended
all Board meetings.

When the Board delegates certain aspects of its management
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as
to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances. The final decision still rests with the Board unless
otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of relevant
committees.

Board of Directors

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance interest
of the Company and shareholders as a whole. The Board is
responsible for setting overall strategy for the Group and monitoring
the performance of the management.

The Board members during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Wenbei (Chairman)

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung (Resigned on 1 April 2014)

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)

Mr. Woo Sai Man Stephen (Appointed on 20 May 2014 and
resigned on 23 May 2014)

Ms. Zhang He (Appointed on 20 May 2014 and
resigned on 23 May 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung  (Resigned on 1 April 2014)
Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014 and
resigned on 1 December 2014)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014,
retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)

Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014)

Mr. He Qinglong (Appointed on 1 December 2014)
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31 Board meetings were held during the year 2014 and the
attendance of Directors at the Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2014 is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

BEEHR

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung
B RE KL

Mr. Wu Wenbei (Chairman)
RXHEE(EE)

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

Mk +

Mr. Lau Shu Yan

BB ALE

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa
MERLZE

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
AIRAREE

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

BEE %%
Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai
B lERE

Mr. He Qinglong
fIERELE

Mr. Woo Sai Man Stephen
At R EE

Ms. Zhang He
REZE

(Resigned on 1 April 2014)
(R=F—FMAH— HEHE)

(Retired on 20 May 2014 and re-appointed

on 23 May 2014)
(R=-FE-—mFRA=FHRITR -FE-—HFLA=1+=H
EEFEE)
(Resigned on 16 January 2014)
(R=F—F—F+HEE)

(Resigned on 1 April 2014)
(R=F—FMAH— HEHE)
(Appointed on 16 January 2014, retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)
(R=—F-—mFE—-F+NABZF R-F-OFLF=-1H
BETR=—F-[FLA=+=AEEFEF)
(Appointed on 16 January 2014 and resigned on
1 December 2014)
(R=—FB-—FE—F+NABZEFLR—F-HF1+=F—H
BHE)
(Appointed on 1 December 2014)
(R=—F—mF+=F—HEZ(F)

(Appointed on 20 May 2014 and resigned on 23 May 2014)

(R=FB-—AFERZA =1+ HEZEFIR=—FE—NFRA=1=H
BHE)

(Appointed on 20 May 2014 and resigned on 23 May 2014)

(R-FE—mFRA-+AEZF IR -—F-—HNFAA=—1=H
BHE)
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
should keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors
and of the business and activities of the Group. Each newly
appointed Director would receive a comprehensive induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. The Group also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all Directors on the
latest developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and to
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the current Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments in relation
to regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of the Directors
and the business of the Group in the following manners:

EERAANRSEERERE
FBES(BEBIFNTES) BEEBEBH
ZERESHREEIREEBXEBRED -
BENZAESHEZEMEAN  BEFRQ
AEBEE BRRERF  URERESEZ—
R EERBEEML  URRKREZ D EHEE
REIER ETRAT EERHMABEER
R REBTRMABNERAMEI - UBRE
REHMESMEBL G ENMEESHEHA
ERMETRUAREMBERAEERR 2K
B DEREEEHERFEEERESR

BE-Z-NE+-A=+—HLEE  RiE
ESUUTHEASREREEEN EFEE
EBEARASEXRB 2HFBEEXERE -

Attended Seminars/

Directors Briefings/Read Materials
HEmNE
% e B
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Wu Wenbei (Chairman) 4
RIMEE(F/E)
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Retired on 20 May 2014 and v
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)
Mzt (R=FB—IFERH[ =+ HREFL
R-ZFE-MFEA=1=H
EEHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFBITES
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa v
MEHRZE
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014, v

retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)

BEERE

(R=—B—F—F+NHEEZ(F

TE—UFEHF =+ HREL
R-E—WFERHA=—+=H

EEHZIE)

Mr. He Qinglong
fERELE
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The primary duties
of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
are to review and supervise the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices, financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
both the GEM website and the Company’s website. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee has performed its
duties, reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Company and reviewed the re-appointment of the external
auditors. The unaudited quarterly and interim together with the
audited annual results of the Company in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2014 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

As at 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. He Qinglong, Ms.
Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang. Mr. Liu Kwong Sang
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and applies his professional
qualifications in accounting and financial expertise in directing the
Audit Committee.

EREES

AARERLBREES » UWiREEEBSTHE
NEEBZIESIFIEEEHESLE - XAQAFE
REES((BERZEEE ) 2TEREAEHR
EEAEE MBS BERREN - BMBE
2 RBEEREAREEFE - 8IBEXRES
SN BERETZBESERAIZERA L
RAATREEAHBIE - REEZE-Z—NF
+ A=+—HLFE BZZESETHRE
B M ALQBRRISEESIE A MRS
INEBRBEN 2 EEE - RARKRKEEREE
R HEEURBZ_E—NF+-_A=1+—
EQEEZﬁgﬁﬁﬁifﬁﬂﬁEEFéﬁ
SEE

R-ZB-NOFE+ZA=1+— EI EREREEH
:%5543F$1HT§$%HEX DRIBMEREL
£ MER ti&l"%iﬁ'ﬁi cBEELER
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4 meetings were held by the Audit Committee and the attendance
of the members of the Audit Committee at Audit Committee
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out as
follows:

Name of Audit Committee Members

BE-_Z-—NE+-A=+—-HLEE &
ZEEHBTOAEE  MELZEERER
EREEESR 2 HETERIIMT

Attendance of
meeting held

FEfTaR
BEREEERENE ZHER
Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Chairman) (Resigned on 16 January 2014) 0/0
SIARE(EE) (R=F—F—F1HBT)
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa 4/4
MEHRZE
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned on 1 April 2014) 11
fAIRREEE (R=ZZF—-EFAA—HBE)
Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014 and 4/4
resigned on 1 December 2014)
R ELE (R=FB—FE—F 1+ NAEZFL
R-FE-[F+ZF—HEE)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Chairman) (Appointed on 16 January 2014, 4/4
retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)
BEERE(ZE) (R=F—MF—H 1+ AEEE
R-F-HFRA =1 HEF
PR-F-FLA=1+=AEEFEHF)
Mr. He Qinglong (Appointed on 1 December 2014) 0/0

fERESLE

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee on
8 October 2007 with terms of reference no less exacting terms
than the CG Code. The principle of the Company’s remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
is to formulate and review the remuneration policies and other
remuneration related matters of the Directors and senior
management of the Company and to make recommendations to the
Board as deemed necessary. The terms of reference setting out the
Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and reviewed the remuneration policies
of the Company, reviewed and made recommendations with
respect to the remuneration of Board members for approval
by the Board and made recommendations with respect to the
remuneration of the newly appointed Directors during the year for
approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the operation model where it performs an advisory role to the
Board, with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

22 EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ KiB&EIERER AT

(R=-F—mF+=F—HEZ(E)

FHESS
ARBER-ZZLF+RNEBRIFHES
2 HBRSEFABAEETRZMERARERE -
ARRFMEES(HFMEES DR IENS
HEERNESR AN A SREEAE ZFH M
HRNEMHMERSEE  TERDLERG
ESERNEBER - HIIFHESSED
BEREECBEESENRAIZRPUERAD
AELAHIE  REE-_T-NF+=A
=+ -HILFE  HFMEESSCHWRRIAR
DRZHFMWBER - RARESEHE 2FHHE
HER URESSHE  URFRANELE
ECHMREES  UBESEHE - FME
EECRAMESERTRBABE 2 CER
X EESREBMEBERNHTESRSREE
BABZHMBER 2 REED -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHRSE

As at 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. He Qinglong. Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

5 meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee and the
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the Remuneration Committee meetings for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out as follows:

Name of Remuneration
Committee Members

R-ZB-NF+-A=+t—R0 FHEESE
BB UFPTESERELRLE - MERKL
TRAEELEE - BEEEERFHESSE
o

BE-Z-—NF+ZA=+—BLFE  Fl
ZEGHBTHARERE MPMNEZEEERER
%ﬁm;ﬁa = nﬁZHﬂﬁnEﬁ?ﬁﬁUﬂﬂT

Attendance of
meeting held

FETaEs
FMESEREME ZHER
Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Chairman) (Resigned on 16 January 2014) 11
2B A EE(EE) (R=FB—IFE—F1+HBE)
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa 5/5
MERZL
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned on 1 April 2014) 11
RS St (R=F—EFMNAH—HBE)
Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014 and 4/4
resigned on 1 December 2014)
BT ERE (R=B—FE—-F 1+ NAEZHFL
R-FE-—F+ZF—HEBE)
Mr. He Qinglong (Appointed on 1 December 2014) 0/0
fAERELE (R=F—FE+=F—HEZHF)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Chairman) (Appointed on 16 January 2014, 2/2
retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appomted on 23 May 2014)
BEERE(EE) (R=F—FE—F+AEZE -
R-FE—MFRF =+ HEF
PR-F-FRLA=1+=AREHZEF)
Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management EERSREEEZHWHE
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined AEBEEEZFHFMBENEREE2IE - EF
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. RABEHIE ©
The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the HMZEEEEEARQAALEEE BAKRRKR

Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, experience, responsibility,
workload and time devoted to the Company and comparable market
statistics, for Board approval. Each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed annually. In addition,
each of the Executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus
as the Remuneration Committee may recommend. Such amount
has to be approved by the Board.

&E o B > TFERHALTARRZEETR
TSR TE  REBHFMELES - U

HESSHE SHTESHERENELH
T MEAHESTFRTT IR o i - BHH
ZESEZE  SPTESTREBIEIEA -
A CHEARESSHE -
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The Company has adopted the New Scheme on 9 May 2011. The
purpose of the share option scheme is to enable the Board, at
its discretion, to grant options to selected eligible participants to
motivate them and to optimise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee on 29
March 2012 with terms of reference no less exacting terms
than the CG Code. The principle of the Company’s nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, determining the re-election of the Directors, and
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors. On 2 September 2013, the Board adopted a set of the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which has
brought in line with the new Listing Rules relating to Board Diversity
with effective from 1 September 2013. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the
Company’s website.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, including the
independence status in the case of an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Board Diversity Policy, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, the retirement and re-election of the Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and considered the
appointments of new Directors. All of the newly appointed Directors
were appointed by going through the selection process stated as
above.

As at 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee comprised of
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. He Qinglong. Ms. Lam Yuk
Ying, Elsa is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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6 meetings were held by the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee meetings for the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out as follows:

Name of Nomination
Committee Members

E!Z:n:—q P_T|$+ H SR EIJJ:@F TE%
TE%;EE = nﬁZHﬂﬁnEﬁ?ﬁﬁUﬂﬂT

Attendance of
meeting held

FETER

REZEENEHS ZHER
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Chairman) 6/6
MERLZ L (E/E)
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned on 1 April 2014) 2/2
ARERE (R=ZF—FrH— HEHE)
Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014) 0/0
BIARE (R=F—F—F1+NHEBE)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014, 3/3

retired on 20 May 2014 and

re-appointed on 23 May 2014)
BEERE (R=B—MFE—-F 1+ NAEEZE

R-E-YFHF =1 HEF

PR-F-FAA= 1= AREFEE)
Mr. He Qinglong (Appointed on 1 December 2014) 0/0
fERELE (R=FB—FEL+=F—HEZHF)
Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014 and resigned on 5/5

1 December 2014)
BEITERE
FR=—F—

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

(R=—ZF-—F—F+NAEZF
FE 1= A — HEHE)
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from time to time
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Function

All members of the Board are responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions. The terms of reference of
corporate governance functions was adopted by the Board at the
Board meeting held on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance with
paragraph D3.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Board has reviewed the policy of the corporate governance and the
corporate governance report of the Company.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard as set out in the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Directors have confirmed, following specific inquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard
and code of conduct during the year under review.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company. During the year under review, the Group is
required to pay an aggregate of approximately HK$550,000 to the
external auditors for performing the statutory audit work of 2014 of
the Group. There is no non-audit service assignment provided by
the external auditors during the year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement sets out the responsibilities for the
Directors in relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements.
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Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Internal Control

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group during the year under
review.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The statement of external auditors of the Company, Elite Partners
CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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General Meeting

During the year under review, an annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM”) was held on 20 May 2014 and two
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the “EGM”) were
held with details of the Directors’ attendance set out below:

Directors

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Wu Wenbei (Chairman)

RXMEE(EE)

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)

ML+ (R=F—FLF =+ HEEL
RE-E-NFRA=1=ZHEEFZEEF)

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung (Resigned on 1 April 2014)

B RESE (R = FE—IFHA — HBE)

Mr. Woo Sai Man Stephen (Appointed on 20 May 2014 and
resigned on 23 May 2014)

HEtREE(R=—FE-—mFLA=+ AEZFUR-—F—F
BA=F+=HFT)

Ms. Zhang He (Appointed on 20 May 2014 and
resigned on 23 May 2014)

RBELt(R-E-FLA= 1 HAREFUR—F—AF
BA=F+=HFF)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYEBITES

Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014 and
resigned on 1 December 2014)

BEAERE(R=FE-—EF -+ NAEZER
RE-E-F+=H—HEE)

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa

MERLZE

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned on 1 April 2014)

AR EE (R=F—F M F — HEHE)

Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014)

BIRARE (R=F—HFE—F+HBT)

e N

RERBFR  RAARARRBFAE (RRBF
RENR=ZZB-—NFREA=-+HHET  LE
TTMRARRRARRESRIAE ([ RRAFH K
2) BRRBFAERRRBFFIAEGZESH
EEEINT

Attendance Attendance

Attendance of the EGM of the EGM
of the AGM held on held on
on 20 May 3 October 12 November
2014 2014 2014
R-ZE—MNFE R-Z2E—NFE R-Z2—0OF
AA=+H +A=H +—At=H
BRBFAE BREREIXE BRRESIAE
g HER HER

v v v

v X X

v X X

X X X

v v X

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014,
retired on 20 May 2014 and re-appointed on 23 May 2014)

BEEXRE(R=BE—EF—A+NAEEER
R-FE-—FRA=1HEER
RE-FE-—FRF =1 =BEHEM)

Mr. He Qinglong (Appointed on 1 December 2014)

AIEREEE (R=F—[F+=H— HEZF)
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At the AGM held on 20 May 2014, the Chairman and the chairmen
of the Board Committees, except the chairman of Nomination
Committee who was absent for other business engagement, have
attended the said AGM to answer questions of the shareholders
of the Company. Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. For the EGMs held
during the year, due to other business engagement, several
Independent Non-executive Directors could not attend the EGMs
but they have appointed the Chairman, other Executive Director
or another member of the Committee as their representative at
the respective EGMs. In the future, the Company will try its best to
encourage and ensure the Independent Non-executive Directors
will attend the general meetings.

Investor Relations and Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for shareholders
of the Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; (iii) key information of the Group available on the website
of the Company; (iv) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters;
and (v) corporate information and the articles of association of the
Company are made available on the Company’s website.

A shareholder’'s communication policy was adopted by the Board
on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the Shareholders and
potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner and on
a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders
and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent
by post to the Company’s registered office at Room A, 9th Floor,
Fortis Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association, an EGM can be
convened by a written request signed by Shareholders, stating the
objects of the meeting, and deposited at the Company’s registered
office at Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or EGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office at Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The detailed
procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director
of the Company as a director. The procedures for shareholders to
convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM (including
election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director) are available on the Company’s website or on request to
the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office at Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis Tower,
77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or send email to
info@8022hk.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the AGM
or EGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHRSE

Company Secretary

As at 31 December 2014, the Company Secretary is Mr. Li Chi
Chung (“Mr. Li") who was appointed on 15 July 2013 and is not an
employee of the Company. Ms. Lo Wing Wah, Irene, the financial
controller of the Company, is the person whom Mr. Li can contact
for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code. Mr. Li has
confirmed that for the year under review, he has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training. The Company Secretary
supports the Chairman, the Board and the Board Committees
by ensuring good information flow and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. He advises the Board on governance
matters and facilitates the induction and professional development
of Directors. All Directors may call upon him for advice and
assistance at any time in respect to their duties and the effective
operation of the Board and the Board Committees.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the EGM held on 3 October 2014, the Shareholders approved
the amendments to the Articles of Association, the provisions of
which principally in line with the new Companies Ordinance. A new
set of the Articles of Association consolidating such amendments
was adopted on the same date. The new set of Articles of
Association is available on the GEM website and the Company’s
website or on request to the Company Secretary.

Looking forward

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take
the necessary actions to ensure the compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Wenbei (“Mr. Wu”), aged 52, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 20 June 2013 and a chairman of the
Company on 1 October 2014. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wu
does not hold any other position with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. Mr. Wu graduated from Xiamen University in the PRC
and was a long-time practicing lawyer in the PRC. He has over 25
years’ experience in international trading and economics. Mr. Wu
is currently an executive director of Xiamen He He Xin Business
Consulting Company Limited and a managing director of Xiamen
Jin Yin Trading Company Limited* (Efi£2EZ 5 48R 2 ). Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Wu does not hold any other directorship in
other public companies the securities of which are listed in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last three years or other major appointment
and qualifications.

Mr. Wu has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of two years commencing from 20 June 2013 and is
subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company. Under the service agreement, Mr.
Wu is entitled to a monthly salary of HK$40,000 plus discretionary
bonus, which is determined with reference to the prevailing market
conditions and his role and responsibilities in the Company. The
Director’s fee for Mr. Wu will be reviewed annually by the board of
Directors with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the
Company, the Company’s performance and the prevailing market
situation.

* The English transliteration of the Chinese name is included for information
purpose only and should not be regarded as the official English
transliteration of such Chinese name.
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EFRGREEERERE

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (“Ms. Lin”), aged 44, was appointed as
an Executive Director on 27 May 2013 and was retired as an
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2014. She was
appointed as an authorised representative of the Company for the
purpose of Rule 5.25(1) of the GEM Listing Rules on 2 October
2013 and ceased to act as an authorised representative upon her
retirement as an Executive Director on 20 May 2014. Ms. Lin has
been re-appointed as an Executive Director and as an authorised
representative of the Company for the purpose of Rule 5.25(1) of
the GEM Listing Rules on 23 May 2014. Ms. Lin is also a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Ms. Lin does not hold any other position with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries. Ms. Lin has a master degree from the New York
Institute of Technology — Vancouver in Canada and has over 20
years’ management experience in various industries. Ms. Lin is a
licensed representative to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities)
and type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinances (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”) of Guoco Capital Limited. Ms.
Lin is an independent non-executive director of Thiz Technology
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8119) which is listed on GEM since 17
August 2012. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Lin does not hold any
other directorship in other public companies the securities of which
are listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years or other
major appointment and qualifications.

Ms. Lin has not entered into any service contract with the Company.
In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. Lin is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s general meetings. Ms. Lin will receive a Director’s fee
of HK$30,000 per month which is determined with reference to
her duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market situation. The Director’s fee
for Ms. Lin will be reviewed annually by the board of Directors with
reference to her duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market situation.
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INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (“Ms. Lam”), aged 55, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 2 September 2013.
She is also members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Save as
disclosed above, Ms. Lam does not hold any other position with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. Ms. Lam holds Type 9 (Asset
Management) regulated activities licenses issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission. Ms. Lam has over 10 years of experience
in the securities industry and more than 15 years of experience
in the treasury function in several major banks. Ms. Lam was an
executive director of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 821), the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange from 23 February 2011 to 28 December
2012. Ms. Lam currently is a director of VC Asset Management
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Value Convergence Holdings
Limited. Ms. Lam was also an associate director of Excalibur
Hong Kong and held senior positions at Glory Sky Global Markets
Limited and Kingston Securities Limited. She was also the head
of the treasury department of KBC Bank N.V. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Lam does not hold any other directorship in other
public companies the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong
or overseas in the last three years or other major appointment and
qualifications.

There is no service agreement nor any fixed term of service
entered into between Ms. Lam and the Company and she is
subject to retirement and rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.
The remuneration of Ms. Lam is HK$120,000 per annum which is
determined with reference to her duties and responsibilities with the
Company and the prevailing market conditions. The Director’s fee
for Ms. Lam will be reviewed annually by the board of Directors with
reference to her duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market situation.
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Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (“Mr. Liu”), aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 16 January 2014 and was
retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from
the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company on 20
May 2014. Mr. Liu has been re-appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 23 May 2014. He was also the chairman of
the audit committee and the remuneration committee and member
of the nomination committee and he was ceased to act as the
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
and member of the nomination committee upon his retirement as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 20 May 2014. He has
been re-appointed as the chairman of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee and member of the nomination committee
on 23 May 2014. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu does not hold
any other position with the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Mr.
Liu has been practising as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong with more than 25 years of experience. Mr. Liu graduated with
honours from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in Accountancy (with honours) and obtained the master
in business administration degree from the University of Lincoln,
the United Kingdom. He is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow members
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Institute of
Financial Accountants, the United Kingdom, the Institute of Public
Accountants, Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, a Certified Tax
Adviser, and the Society of Registered Financial Planners. Mr. Liu
is currently an independent non-executive director of Polytec Asset
Holdings Limited ({R FIiE & EZIR AR A 7)) (stock code: 208) since
2000, China National Culture Group Limited FEIEIR Xt EX£EE
BIRAF] (formerly known as China Railsmedia Corporation Limited
(PEIEBEEAFRAT)) (stock code: 745) since 2004, whose
securities are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
abc Multiactive Limited (RERHZBER A F)) (stock code: 8131)
since 2004, a company the securities of which are listed on GEM.
He was the independent non-executive director of Dragonite
International Limited (£23EBIKRH R F]) (stock code: 329) from
April 2010 to September 2014. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu
does not hold any other directorship in other public companies the
securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last
three years or other major appointment and qualifications.
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Mr. Liu has not entered into a service contract with the Company.
In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Liu is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meetings. Mr. Liu is entitled to a Director’s fee of
HK$120,000 per annum which is determined with reference to
his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market situation. The Director’s fee
for Mr. Liu will be reviewed annually by the board of Directors with
reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market situation.

Mr. He Qinglong (“Mr. He”), aged 37, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 December 2014. He is
also the members of the nomination committee, the audit committee
and the remuneration committee. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
He does not hold any other position with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries. Mr. He has been engaging in design and brand
planning for 13 years. He graduated from the Academy of Fine Arts
in Fuzhou University in 1998. He had served as a design director
for a domestic fashion brand and currently serves as a research
and development and brand planning consultant for a domestic
fashion brand. Save as disclosed above, Mr. He does not hold any
directorship in any public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the
three years or other major appointment and qualifications.

There is no service agreement nor any fixed term of service
entered into between Mr. He and the Company and he is subject
to retirement and rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.
The remuneration of Mr. He is HK$120,000 per annum and a
discretionary bonus which is determined by the board of Directors
with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company
and the prevailing market conditions.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to the resolution of the Board passed on 7 October 2014,
the Company announced the proposed change of the Company’s
name from “TLT Lottotainment Group Limited ¥REBER LD
7" to “Evershine Group Holdings Limited JKi2&EBEERER AT
The change of name has been approved by passing of a special
resolution by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 12 November 2014. The Certificate of
Change of Name was issued by the Registrar of Companies
of Hong Kong on 26 November 2014. Following the change of
Company name becoming effective on 26 November 2014, the
Shares have been traded on the Stock Exchange under the new
English stock short name of “EVERSHINE GP” and new Chinese
stock short name of “KIBEBIZAR”, instead of “TLT LOTTOTAIN”
in English and “Zi2&E” in Chinese, with effect from 9 December
2014. The stock code of the Company remains as “8022".

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 50 to 52.

The states of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the statement of financial position on pages
53 to 55 respectively.

The cash flows of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 58 to 59.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. Shares
were issued and consolidated during the year on placing of shares,

right issue and share consolidation.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the year are set out in

note 29(c) to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any payment of dividend nor

transfer of any amount to reserves for the year (2013: Nil)
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

B

e

Hﬁa@

PBHR

AEEBETREAMRFEZREUREERE
BEREREIWT :

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

RARRAFERNBERANEE 2 FHENE
BEKRMETE29 - RAFER  ARAREER
7~ HRRBROEHEBRITROREHRD

FRRBEEZBFRRNIHHRKMEE29(c)

EETEERAFEIRNEARS - FAEH
FARERRB(CE—=F  #) -

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE “E-ZF —E-CF “E—-F “Z-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti&n TR T TET TR
(Re-presented)  (Re-presented)
(&Z5) (==51)
Turnover 2 45,792 32,703 23,194 24,176 24,733
Loss before taxation BRBRIEE (19,648) (49,059) (27,430) (41,773) (21,878)
Loss from discontinued operations & IL¥% 2 (Ei),/
i (3,520) (5,511) (28,823) (70032)  (153269)
Taxation HE 20 (12) — (5) —
Loss before non-controlling Rt ERERAIEE
interests (23,148) (54,582) (56,253)  (111810) (175147
Net loss from ordinary activities ~ T51%1E2 B E %%
EEFE
attributable to shareholders REE(L (19,926) (50,582) (46,192) (68,878) (101,335)
attributable to non-controlling FERERES
interests (3222) (4,000) (10,061) (42,932) (73,812)
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2014

~B-mF
HK$'000
TiEn

—E-=F
HK$'000
TiEn

As at 31 December
R+t=A=+-AH
2013 2012 2011 2010
i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THL TER

Total assets HEE 131,701 112,775 158,733 230,324 69,235
Total liabilties Baf (94,965) (52,842) (187,800) (221,041) (234,786)
Non-controlling interests FERER 19,657 16,435 12,435 (344) 21,047
Shareholders funds KR&¢ 56,393 76,368 (16,632) 8,939 (144,504)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 respectively to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has no distributable reserve
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible bonds and
share capital during the year are set out in notes 27 and 29
respectively to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HKS$Nil (2013: HKS$Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wenbei (Chairman)

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung (Resigned on 1 April 2014)

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)

Mr. Woo Sai Man Stephen (Appointed on 20 May 2014 and
resigned on 23 May 2014)

Ms. Zhang He (Appointed on 20 May 2014 and
resigned on 23 May 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai

(Resigned on 1 April 2014)
(Appointed on 16 January 2014 and
resigned on 1 December 2014)

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014,
retired on 20 May 2014 and
re-appointed on 23 May 2014)

Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014)

Mr. He Qinglong (Appointed on 1 December 2014)

In accordance with the Article 121 of the Articles of Association
and as at the date of this report, Mr. Wu Wenbei and Ms. Lam Yuk
Ying, Elsa shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the Article 101 of the Articles of Association
and as at the date of this report, Mr. He Qinglong shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 32 to 36 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wu Wenbei has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of two years. Ms. Lin Yan Jenny has not
entered into a service contract with the Company but in accordance
with the Articles of Association, Ms. Lin is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s general meetings. Each
of the Executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus, the
amount of which will be determined by the Board of Directors as
its absolute discretion having regard to the operation results of the
Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have not entered into
any service agreement with the Company and are not appointed
for a specific term, but all are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected and
Related Party Transactions” of this annual report, no other contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2014, as far as the Directors are aware of, none
of the Directors or the management shareholders of the Company
or any of its respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has any interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from the share option scheme referred as below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2014 was any of the Company
or any associated corporation a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Old Scheme was adopted on 30 July 2001, amended on 2
December 2008 by the Shareholders under which the Directors
may, at their discretion, grant options to themselves and any
employees of the Group entitling them to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The Old Scheme was terminated and the New Scheme
was adopted on 9 May 2011 by the Shareholders. The purpose
of the share option schemes are to enable the Company to grant
options to the Participants (as defined below) as incentives and
rewards for their contribution to the Company or its subsidiaries.

Participants under the Share Option Schemes include any
employee or consultant, advisor, agent, contractor, client or
supplier of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who is in the sole
opinion of the Board has contributed or is expected to contribute
to the Group. The principal terms of the share option schemes are
summarized as follow:

The New Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 9 May 2011 and will remain in force until 8 May
2021. The Company may by ordinary resolution in general meeting
or such date as the Board shall determine, terminate the New
Scheme at any time without prejudice to the exercise of options
granted prior to such termination.
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The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(i) the nominal value of the shares;

(ii) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant
which must be a business day; and

(iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an
offer of the grant of the option must be made within 28 days from
the date of grant. The exercise period of any option granted under
the New Scheme must not be less than three years and not more
than ten years commencing on the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not, in the absence of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate
exceed 10% in nominal amount of the aggregate of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of listing of shares on the Stock
Exchange. The Company may seek approval by shareholders at
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit (the “10% Limit"). However,
the total number of Shares available for issue under exercise of
options which may be granted under the Share Option Schemes
in these circumstances must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of approval of the refreshing
of the 10% Limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which then have been granted and have yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Schemes and any other
share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

Any grant of options to a connected person (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) must be approved by all Independent Non-
executive Directors (excluding any Independent Non-executive
Director who is the proposed grantee). Where options are proposed
to be granted to a connected person who is also a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or an Independent Non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates, and the proposed grant of options, when aggregated
the options already granted to such connected person in the past
12 months period, would entitle that person to receive more than
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0.1% of the total issued shares of the Company for the time being
and the value of which is in excess of HK$5,000,000, then the
proposed grant must be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the general meeting. Apart from the connected person involved,
all other connected persons of the Company must abstain from
voting in such general meeting (except where any connected
person intends to vote against the proposed grant).

There is no outstanding share option under the Old Scheme as at 1
January 2014 and 31 December 2014. As at the date of this report,
no options have been granted under the New Scheme since its
adoption.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF INTEREST IN
SHARES

As 31 December 2014, other than the interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company disclosed
above, person or corporation who had interests in the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or, who was, directly or Indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares and underlying of the Company

Name of

substantial Capacity and Number of
shareholder nature of Interests shares held
TERRES BARERNE R AEE
Mr. Lau Yu Beneficial Owner 28,710,000
MFELE BEEEBA

shares held
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital
EARAFB R
RABAE DL

5.13%

Number of
underlying

0 28,710,000
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any party who
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Pat XV
of the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly Interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company had maintained the public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected in accordance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2014.

The material related party transactions of the Group are disclosed
in note 37 to the financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 8 October 2007 for
reviewing the remuneration policies and other remuneration related
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company
and making recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Schemes as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the Share Option
Schemes are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report”.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the five largest customers combined and the
five largest suppliers combined are less than 30% of the Group’s
total turnover and purchases, respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 16 to 31 of this annual report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The details of the non-adjusting post balance sheet events are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. He Qinglong. Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang is the chairman of the Audit Committee and applies his
professional qualifications in accounting and financial expertise in
directing the Audit Committee. The unaudited quarterly and interim
results together with the audited annual results of the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITOR

Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants, was
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
resigned as auditors of the Company on 11 December 2012. Elite
Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as auditors
of the Company on 11 December 2012 and the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 to 2014
was audited by Elite Partners.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite Partners as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Wu Wenbei

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 23 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENERE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED (formerly known as “TLT Lottotainment Group Limited”)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Evershine
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as “TLT Lottotainment
Group Limited”) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 156, which comprise the
consolidated and company statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) (the “Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”), and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule
11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention that the Group
incurred a total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$
23,197,000 during the year ended 31 December 2014 and as of
that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$18,209,000. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Nevertheless, Note 2(b) set out the basis for adoption of going
concern in the preparation of these financial statements including
but not limited to the proceeds of approximately HK$81,000,000
received from the completion of rights issue subsequently to the
financial year end.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2015

Yip Kai Yin
Practising Certificate Number P05131

Suites 2B-4A, 20th Floor,

Tower 5, China Hong Kong City,
33 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GeEgR
iy = ﬁ For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE_—Z—N&E+-A=+—HI&EE

2014

—E-mF =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz FAET

Continuing operations BESEEK
Turnover =] 4813 45,792 32,703
Cost of services FREE A (42,418) (29,576)
Gross profit EA 3,374 3,127
Other income and gain or loss, net Hit A RIS E 1858 5 1,797 13,497
Operating and administrative expenses RERTHHX (20,218) (31,871)
Impairment loss on goodwill BERESE — (20,402)
Loss from operations TEEE (15,047) (35,649)
Finance costs EE=1p%N 6(a) (4,601) (13,410)
Loss before taxation BRBIAIEE 6 (19,648) (49,059)
Taxation B8 7(a) 20 (12)
Loss after taxation from continuing operations B4 %56 » BHi B B (19,628) (49,071)

Discontinued operations BARIEER

Loss from discontinued operations BALERER 11(a) (3,520) (5,511)
Loss for the year rEEER (23,148) (54,582)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RealRgx
i = ﬁ For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_—Z—NE+=-A=+—HIFE

2014
—E-mE =fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TBT
Attributable to: BERN
Equity shareholders of the Company RATBREREA 10
— From continuing operations — REBESEER (18,013) (47,690)
— From discontinued operations — REBK LR (1,913) (2,892)
(19,926) (50,582)
Non-controlling interests FiER S
— From continuing operations — REFECEER (1,615) (1,381)
— From discontinued operations — REBK LK (1,607) (2,619)
(3,222) (4,000)
Loss for the year rEEER (23,148) (54,582)
Loss per share BRER 12(a)
From continuing and discontinued operations ~ REIHELE EH KR DR ILEH
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (3.56) centsi&{ll  (31.07) centsEL
From continuing operations REFECEEY 12(b)
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (3.22) centsi&{l  (29.30) centsiEL
From discontinued operations REBA LK 12(c)
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (0.34) centsi{l  (1.78) centsiEL

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reiRaRkAMREREE
lﬁ: = ﬁ ﬁ For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_—Z—NE+=-A=+—HIFE

2014
—E-NmF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FExT
Loss for the year REEEE (23,148) (54,582)

Other comprehensive (expense)/lincome REEHMEE(FEXR) WA
for the year

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to AIREREEEEH S EE

profit or loss: Bm2ER ¢
Exchange differences on translation of BREGINE A B B R

financial statements of overseas subsidiaries  Z[E 7 Z%8 (49) 53
Other comprehensive (expense)/income AEEHMZEBIX) WA

for the year (49) 53
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAFE2HEIZERE (23,197) (54,529)
Attributable to: BB

Equity shareholders of the Company AR REZE A (19,975) (50,529)

Non-controlling interests IR S (3,222) (4,000)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAFE2HEIZEE (23,197) (54,529)

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial ~ KiFF#RZSHEAMERRELT IS -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ﬁéﬂﬁﬂf;ﬂi At 31 December 2014 R=F—MNF+=A=+—H

2014
—E—F
HK$’000
FHxT

HK$'000
TR

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BENRE 14 748 1,086
Intangible assets BREE 15 37,860 91
Interests in associates REEE N T 2 xS 18 6,000 =
Goodwill e 16 11,614 —
56,222 1,177
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables 25 KREMERIE 20 7,286 37,948
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHBISRITER 21 1,778 1,732
Cash and cash equivalents BERBESEEY 22 7,163 4,973
16,227 44,653
Assets classified as held for sales WA EHEEE 11(c) 59,252 66,945
75,479 111,598
Current liabilities HREBaE
Trade and other payables B R EMENTIE 23 13,444 19,328
Finance lease payables R EREESRIE 24 — 97
Short-term loan BHIER 25 2,000 =
Promissory notes R EE 26 43,000 —
58,444 19,425
Liabilities directly associated with EFMAFFHREEERE
assets classified as held for sales HEzaE 11(c) 35,244 33,417
93,688 52,842
Net current (liabilities)/assets hE(EE) BEFHE (18,209) 58,756
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEABRAHEE 38,013 59,933
Non-current liabilities ERBARB
Convertible bonds AR ES 27 — —
Deferred tax liability EEFEHERE 28 1,277 =
1,277 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 36,736 59,933
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBRAE
vy =1 Y ) At 31 December 2014 A=Z—MFE+=H=+—§

2014
—2-mEF
HK$’000
Tz

2013
—Eg—=

HK$'000

FHERT

Notes

liogE3

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRR#E

Share capital &N 29 755,030 280,068

Reserves & (698,637) (203,700)
Total equity attributable to equity AT REREE ARG

shareholders of the Company S 56,393 76,368
Non-controlling interests IR S (19,657) (16,435)
TOTAL EQUITY B 36,736 59,933

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23
March 2015.

Wu Wenbei
R
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Mﬁﬂf%ﬂi At 31 December 2014 R=Z—F+=-F=+—H

2014

—E-mF

Notes HK$’000
g2 FHET

HK$'000
TR

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BENRE 14 74 88
Interests in subsidiaries KB A Bz 17 102,057 53,457
102,131 53,545
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and deposit paid HtEWFIER EfHRs 20 1,860 26,218
Amount due from an associate FEUR — R B & N B FIE 6,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents HEeERBREEEY 22 1,945 3,072
9,805 29,290
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables Hi A FRIE 23 2,067 5,138
Short-term loan BHAE K 25 2,000 =
Promissory notes EHRE 26 43,000 —
47,067 5,138
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AE) EEFE (37,262) 24,152
Total assets less current liabilities SEABERTHEE 64,869 77,697
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Convertible bonds AR ES 27 | — | | =
NET ASSETS EEZE 64,869 77,697
EQUITY AND RESERVES Rk HE
Share capital &N 29 755,030 280,068
Reserves (G 29(c) (690,161) (202,371)
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 64,869 77,697

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

March 2015.

Wu Wenbei
R
Director

EZ

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ﬁ‘é*g ﬁﬁg § For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=Z—M&F+=A=+—HLLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RARREREARE
Convertible Share Accumu- Non-
Share Share  Exchange  Statutory bond option Other [ated controlling

capitll  premium  reseve  reseve  feseve  fesenve  fesenve  losses Total interests
TaR  ERE FER

kA RORE EIRE iTRE &SRR i 2tEE ZiEE 5t B&
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TAn  TEn  TEn  fEn  TBr  TEn T TEn  TEn  TEn

At1 January 2013 W=8-Z£-f-R 0824 518611 148 AN (Y] 1187 4 (641907 (16632)  (1243)  (29,067)

Loss for the year ERER - - - - - = —  (058)  (0582)  (4000) (34582
Exchange difference on translation BEBMBLE
of financial statements of overseas o855

subsidiaries EiZE - - 5 - - - - - 53 — 5
Total comprehensive income/ ERAEUA/

(expenses) for he year (BR)48 - - 5 - - - — (50582  (50529)  (4000)  (4529)
Issue of new shares in connection RTEAREEREL

with the open offer Hikt 65,647 - - - - - - - 65647 — 65647
Issue of placing shares BRERD 655 131 - - - - - — 7866 — 7866
Issue of offers share with bonus shares ~ BTAREERH 175042 (105,026) - - - - - - 70016 — 0016
Share options lapsed BAMERE - - - - — - e = = =
Settlement of convertile bonds ZHTRRES - — = - (M7 = -1 = - =
A1 December 2013 WOE-ZELTAIT-R M08 MME 5 - - WG9S0 T6  (164%) S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ﬁ‘e*g ﬁﬁa § For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=Z—M&E+=A=+—FLLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARBREARE
Convertible Share Accumu- Non-
Share Share  Exchange  Statutory bond option Other [ated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
TER  BRE FER
Bk BEEE ERRE iRRE  BERRE fE HtdE ZHEE it s EREE
HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TR TEn TR Tin Tin TEn TR TEn  TER  TEn
At 1 January 2014 R=3-mE-A-R 280,068 474962 801 5 - - 44 (679560) 76368 (16435 59933
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - —  (19926)  (19926)  (3222)  (23,49)
Exchange difference on translation BESINELT
of financial statements of overseas o855
subsidiaries EiZE - - (49) - - - - - (49) - (49)
Total comprehensive ERRE
expenses for the year Rxa% - - (49) - - - - (1992) (19975)  (3222)  (23197)
Transfer upon aboliton of par value REFDTRA
under the new Hong Kong ERAELEZZ)
Companies Ordinance (note) 474962 (474962) - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2014 RIZ-WETZA=T-B 755030 - 752 5 - - 44 (699.486) 56393 (19.657) 36,736
Note: et

Par value of the Company’s shares is retired and the relevant concepts of
nominal value and share premium are abolished upon the commencement of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on 3 March 2014.

EERBRAAFZROEAERRANEEER T -—NE=
A= AR E B D RIRGIREERR -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ﬁéﬁﬁﬁii For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=Z—M&F+=A=+—HLLFE

2014
—E-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT

FiEx

Operating activities R
Loss before taxation RREE A1

From continuing operations REFELEFER (19,648) (49,059)

From discontinued operations RE TR ILET (3,520) (5,511)
Adjustments for: R

Depreciation nE 198 202

Impairment loss on goodwill [EEEAEY SE] - 20,402

Bad debts written off 17 AR W 1,640 1,060

Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#HE 230 95

Fair value change in trading security ZEZERHNTEEE - (499)

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWXE - BER

plant and equipment RfEEE (W) 77 (34)

Interest income FIE YA (34) =

Finance costs A& KA 4,601 558
Operating loss before change in BESSHRBAIZ

working capital R EE (16,456) (32,786)
Decrease in trade and other receivables g 5 R EMEWRIERD 29,022 22,367
Decrease in asset held for sale BFEHEEERD 9,417 5,686
(Decrease)/increase in trade and = % & H IR

other payables W), (6,199) 11,823
Cash generated from operations REEBMBZES 15,784 7,090
Tax paid [RENESAE] 2) (12)
Net cash generated from operating REXBAB 2R TR

activities 15,782 7,078
Investing activities RETRE
Payments for purchase of property, MEBEYE  BER

plant and equipment BB (33) (528)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BEK

plant and equipment R PT S RRIE 92 73
Proceeds from disposal of securities .':HE%%F)T%?X - 1,480
Advance to an associate m) — R B N Bl 2K (6,000) -
Interest received FriS A2 34 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BREEX(FTR) gz

investing activities HEFEE (5,907) 1,025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

sAReRBR
lﬁ: = ')lb E For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_—Z—NE+=-A=+—HIFE

Financing activities

2014
—2-F
HK$’000
FEx
BMEED

HK$'000
THET

Proceeds from issues of short-term loan BITRAERBRE 2,000 =
Proceeds from issues of promissory notes BATAN ZEERIE 37,162 =
Repayments of promissory notes BEAREE (46,758) -
Repayments of interest bearing loan EBEFEER - (122,600)
Repayments of finance leases EERERS (102) 71
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR 14 SR 1T 77 =R 38 A0 (46) (11)
Issue of shares through open offers BT ABEBERS - 135,663
Issue of shares through placing BITHERHD - 7,866
Exchange movement =) - 53
Early redemption of convertible bonds RAIEL T RRES - (28,495)
Net cash used in financing activities RETEMAZESFE (7,744) (7,453)
Net cash increase in cash and ReRBESEEYZ
cash equivalent 15 &R EEE 2,131 650
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HBZRER
REZEY 5,148 4,491
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ELEE s HE (44) 7
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—HZRE&K
REZEY 7,235 5,148
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEENIN
Continuing operations: FERE R
Bank balances and cash RITHEEGRRIES 7,163 4,973
Discontinued operations (note 11(c)) BRILERE (MEE11(c)
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRRE 72 175
7,235 5,148
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

60

GENERAL INFORMATION

Evershine Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as “TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited”) (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are at Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 12 November 2014
and approved by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong, the
name of the Company was changed from “TLT Lottotainment
Group Limited” to “Evershine Group Holdings Limited” and the
Chinese name of the Company was changed from “¥IREEHF
RAT to MREEZRARA"

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The subsidiaries of the Company are engaged in the provision
of travel agent services, advertising and marketing services,
fashion garment trading and mobile application business.

The mobile application business is a new business segment of
the Group through an acquisition during the year.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁim* :=I.I For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=Z—MF+=A=+—BILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) an Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statement
also comply with the applicable requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be those
of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
section 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group’) and the
Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

Except the convertible bonds are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies, the measurement
basis used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

2. EREBERME

(a)

(b)

BREH
HEREMBREDVEZREBITM
NE(EHBEHMAE ) EH2FE
EREBMBIREER ([ BBYER
HEA | BEASHAEERENEE
PBHEEL - FBEAEATER
R RRECAB)REEBD
RERAGER - WERSMBHE
NETEBLAROCERER - H
Lt B B 2 I AT b A AR SR BB A =2
1RGIFIR 115876 EETIR 2T BB
BAMRPIZE622F B R D BIEM T HE R
RE LB 1R B R EST IEA AT D B R
PIERB2ERER - WERSHK
BRTEFEBBARSZMARLDE
RAIERFZ LR AR ([RIZAR EHAR
Al )2 ERRERE - AEBEFARA
ZERETHRBEHNT X -

BSOSO EME THRE
ETEBMBRELED - MBEREER
RAEBERARBARERBERE
MHAHERRMN - RETTHREZE
i #R P A2 S B SR [ A B o % B
FrslBER KA EREHE 225 -
ERUEGEMBHERRR - BHE
BIESIRHTEE2(c) ©

mRERE

BE_Z-NMEF+-A=+—-—HILF
EZEaBRREFERQAREM
B (M AEE ) 2 BHRRK
KEBNBENRAREE AR 2 EE

BRETHEMBE  TIRRESUHE
DFE2H - RmRES M BIRERA
R BEEREL AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

62

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Disposal group classified as held for sale is stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
disposal.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associates assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the following:

(i) The Group incurred a consolidated net loss from
operations attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately HK$ 19,926,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014

(i) The Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$ 18,209,000 as at 31
December 2014

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁipﬁ %.I For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—ALFE

2. EXEHBEBERE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Nevertheless, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group will be able to finance its working
capital and financial requirements given that 280,068,452
rights shares at a subscription price of HK$0.30 have
been issued on 9 February 2015 which the proceeds
of approximately HK$ 81,000,000 received from the
completion of rights issue.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash resource to satisfy its future working
capital and other financing requirement. Accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments
that would be required should the Group to fail to continue
as a going concern.

(c) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
In the current year, the Group have adopted the
following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA which are
relevant to and effective for the Company’s financial period
beginning on 1 January 2014:

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies
BB (BRI ERERREES) BE

—RREE2155

Amendments to HKAS 32
EBETTEREI25R (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 36
EBETTERIZE365E (85T A)

Amendments to HKAS 39
EBETTERAIZEI (BT &)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
BBV BIREERFE 1058 (IBRTA) REER
Annual Improvements to (2010-2012)
FERE(ZEZ-BFEZ--F)

The initial application of these financial reporting standards
does not necessitate material changes in the company’s
accounting policies and retrospective adjustments of the
comparatives presented in the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Entities

(b)

(c)

IRBLEEE (E)

SR > EEHA280,068,452 1% I IR 19 A
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HiEemEERESmAE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets

FEMEETHESREAVIKE

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
FTETENEBERETPEHEANTE

Amendments to HKFRS 2 and 3

EBMBREERE25E R BB IR E RS 35 (BT A)

BRAEAZSENBREENHARQF
ZETBRERRGE M BHRERMZ
BT EHARSBEEALE -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Standards and Interpretations is issued but not yet adopted
The Group has not early applied any of the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
which have been issued but are not yet effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2014:

2. EXEHBEBERE)

(c) BRFITREETEBUBREER

(&)

E B ERIRA 2 R R 2 FE
FREBEUERZEATICEMER
—E-NF-A-HRBZWEHE
I8 R4 B2 #R] RAAERT BB M IS
HEEA BT R

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Amendments to HKAS 19
EBEGTTERE195% (85T A)

HKFRS 9 (2014)
BERMBRELELFEIR(ZF—HF)
HKFRS 14

EBUIEHREER 1455

HKFRS 15
BBMBEHREERE 155

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

BRI ERE16E BB ER
6383k (IEET4%)

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

BB ERE16E BB ER
EVALACE IR

Amendments to HKAS 27
EARETHERE27H (1BET )

Amendments to HKAS 28
and HKFRS 10

BB ELFE28R R E BT KRS
2RI 1058 (85T &)

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions?
REBATE : EBEMHR

Financial Instruments*
EEET A

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

EERLIRE?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

HEF ZBNEHNEENRAS

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

BEUEZITEMEES A

Bearer Plants?

FEMEY?

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements?

EB M mR R A?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

REERABERAE LR BNEEHERILE?
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Standards and Interpretations is issued but not yet adopted

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11
BERMBRMELAFE 1R (ETTAR)

Annual Improvements to (2010-2012)
FEE(CZ-ZEETE-F)

Annual Improvements to (2011-2013)
FEGE(CE——ZEZ2F-=F)

Annual Improvements to (2012-2014)
FERE(CE-—F-FT—MNF)

' Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 1
2 Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 2
3. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 3

4 Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 4

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂ#ﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

2. EXEHBEBERE)

(c) ERFITREETEBUBREER
(&)
EEM1ERIR 2 R R 2 FE ()

Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operations?

RS RENBRBIBE A

Amendments to HKFRS 8, HKAS 16, HKAS 24 and HKAS 38
EBKRELERELY - HBSTERE 165 - HBSTHER
FE24E R BB G AERIFE 38R (IBFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 13, and HKAS 40'
EBNEHREEREIE - BEMKRELERF1IHFR
EBETTERISE405E (BETA)1

Amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 192
HRVBMEEAFELS  BBUMBMELRETHER
BERETEAE195E (BRI A2

R-ZB-—NMFELA-ARZERBZF
EHBEER -
REZB-RF-A-ARZEBBZF
EHREER -
REZZB—tF-RB-—HRIZEHBZF
EHEEXR -
REZB-NF-B-—HR2EHBKZF
EHEEN -

AREBEERZEHNT REET BB

what the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon B EERAID BN 2 L EE S

initial application. So far the Group considers that these
new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial

position.

ah o BAT - ANEERR 0 ZEHE]
KB BB BIRE LR A TR
HARE 2 KEEERWBMRREK
EAFE-
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAE:HFHME#E)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Basis of consolidation

(d) FREEE

66

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

* has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

» assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(e)

()

(9)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRSs.

Acquisition of assets

For the acquisition of assets effected through a non-
operating corporate structure that does not represent a
business, it is considered that the transactions does not
meet the definition of a business combination. Accordingly
the transaction is accounted for as the acquisition of asset
and such transaction does not give rise to goodwill.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less any accumulated impairment losses, if any,
and is presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit a pro rata on the
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEHHEMEE)
(CONTINUED)

(h) REEERNTREE AR 2R

(h) Interests in associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interests in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint arrangement.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates or joint ventures.

When the Group’s share of losses of associates or joint
ventures exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associates or joint ventures.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

70

(CONTINUED)

(h) Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture, or when the investment (or
a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associates or joint
ventures and the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

)]

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Non-current asset held for sale

Non-current assets and disposals groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary of sales of such asset or disposal group and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less cost to disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method, over
their useful live as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 10 years
Leasehold improvement 20 years
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effective of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

(ii) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
The cost of intangible assets acquired in business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the assets are derecognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimate the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocate to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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U]

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

(m) Financial instruments

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified as
loans and receivables.

— Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instrument.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAEGERBIZE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued) (m) AT R (E)
(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i) BIBEEE)

— Loan and receivables BRI ERRIE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivable
including trade and other receivables, restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Loans and receivables are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows have been affected. Objective evidence of
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+ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or s BITARRZHBIERE
counterparty; or MR EE 5 =5

+ breach of contract, such as default or o EEREXRES ST
delinquency in interest or principal payments; E =17
or

+ it becoming probable that the borrower will . ERABUREHERET
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation. B EE -
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For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Financial assets (Continued)

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivable, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

— Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  KBEBIZERER A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁipﬁ %.I For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Equity instrument (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, promissory notes and short-term loan
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the
bonds into equity, is included in equity (convertible
bonds equity reserve).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAXSHHEMEE)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bonds equity reserve will be released
to the retained profits. Neither gain nor loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.

(CONTINUED)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued) (m) TR (E)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) BIBEEGE
— Convertible bonds (Continued) AR ES (&)
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(iii) Derecognition (iif) AR
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when AEEBEREEWIREREZ
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset EHREFERERILERMEE
expire. =30
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On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the tEERABRARRERZZ
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in Ef BB 2BANBEZEENE
other comprehensive income and accumulated in R ARTERD o

equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the B BRIBIACHKEEEZR
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised HEEEAREMREBDZES
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised REBRIRER -

in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEHHEMEE)
(CONTINUED)

(n) Leasing (n) A&

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating lease.

(i) The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

(i) The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowings costs.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expenses on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as in incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable demand and form an integral of the
Group’s management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and at banks which are not restricted as to use.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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80

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and cost, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(q)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

i)

ii)

i)

Service income — service income is recognised when
the related services are provided.

Interest income — interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

Employee benefit

(i)

(i)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contribution.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using a Black-
Scholes Option Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Employee benefit (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(i) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expenses is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
or the options expires.

Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss in the period which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from the amount as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAXSHHEMEE)
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(s) Frie%i(#&)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

82

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁipﬁ %.I For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

®)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the
profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=Z—MF+=A=+—FLLFE

2. EXEHBEBERE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(u) Related parties (u) BEAEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: HMEBUT AL BIZALTEHAEER
BE

(a) fFZALTHZAL AR

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) ZHRERZEGAES ;
7

(i) BAEEEREAEEZE AT Z
TEEERERE I

i fF & T JEMIRSE - BNERRE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HEEBEERTE;
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

(b)

conditions applies: rEEEHE :
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same (i) EE‘EQEEZIKE BER—-%£E

ZBERTE ;

ZERAHMERZBER
ARAE LR (FHEMER
FRF - MEQRRERK

group;

}

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(ii)

o
]]

BAR)
(iii) the entity and the group are joint ventures of the (iii) EE?&%I/’%H £=5
same third party; ZEENT
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (v —EERBAFE=-BB 8%
other entity is an associate of the third entity; AEAIRHEMERAE =58

ZHBERTE

84
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(v)

(vi)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂ#ﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZE=—Z—NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

2. EXEHBEBERE)

(v) DEBHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—ALFE

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

86

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The assumptions, estimates and judgements
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and
assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom equal
to the estimates.

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following accounting
judgements:

()

(1

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of and related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of significant technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation/amortisation charges where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Going Concern Basis

Management makes an assessment of the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern when preparing
the consolidated financial statements. In assessing
whether the going concern assumption is appropriate,
management takes into account all available
information about the future, which is at least, but
is not limited to, twelve months from the date of this
report. The degree of consideration depends on the
facts in each case.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁim* %.I For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=Z—ME+=A=+—BILFEE

3. EFHEERAEE)

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the (a) ERAXAEESHHESHRELEZEE
Group’s accounting policies (Continued) AR (&)
() Going Concern Basis (Continued) () FHEEERE(E)

Management believes that the Group is able to
continue as a going concern after taking into account
the measures, financial supports and the future
profitable operations. Accordingly, management has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. An adverse change in any of
the above conditions would require the consolidated
financial statements to be prepared on an alternative
authoritative basis and such basis, together with the
fact that the consolidated financial statements is not
prepared on a going concern basis, would need to
be disclosed. If the Group was unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset
amounts or classification of liabilities may need to be
incorporated into the consolidated financial statements.

(lll) Income Taxes and Deferred Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised
as management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax and tax in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—ALFE

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 3. 2HAERYEE)

(CONTINUED)

(b) f&EHFHEEREZ 2 RIF
AT RERFZ 2T ERFEMT ¢

(1) BERE

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

() Impairment of Assets

88

(1

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
When indication of impairment is identified,
management prepares discounted future cashflow to
assess the differences between the carrying amount
and value in use and provided for impairment loss.
In determining the value in use of certain assets
and liabilities, the Group makes assumptions of the
effects of uncertain future events on those assets and
liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial
position date. These estimates involve assumptions
about such items as risk adjustment to cash flows or
discount rate used, future changes in salaries and
future changes in prices affecting other costs. The
Group’s estimates and assumptions are based on
the expectations of future events and are reviewed
periodically. Any change in the assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts would increase or decrease
in the provision of the impairment loss and affect the
Group’s net asset value.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the net profit in future years.

Estimated Impairment of Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
used in the calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill
was approximately HK$11,614,000 (2013: HK$Nil).

Details of the recoverable amount calculated are
disclosed in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

3. EFHEERAEE)

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(1) Allowance for Impairment of Bad and Doubtful Debts
The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables and
deposits. Allowances are applied to trade and other
receivables and deposits where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

4. TURNOVER

The Group’s turnover comprises the provision of travel agent
services, advertising and marketing services and mobile
application business.

(b) EEFTFBEREZZRIR(E)
() SRR E R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—Z—NFE+-A=+—HILFE

4. TURNOVER (CONTINUED) 4. EEHBE(E)
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised RER > REEBEREIZZEEETZRA
in turnover during the year is analysed as follows: HRISBESMWOT ¢
2014 2013
—F-mF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TExT
Continuing operations BFEREHER
— Advertising and marketing services — E& R & R 4,657 9,600
— Revenue from travel agent services — HieiisX IR ARAE UL 25 40,884 23,103
— Service income from mobile — RENERAERIEUA
application 251 —
45,792 32,703
Discontinued operations BRI
— Artists management income — BABERA
(note 11a) (Btat11a) 37 592
— Rental income — HEWA
(note 11a) (Kfat11a) 1,854 —
1,891 592
47,683 33,295
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y
ﬂ#ﬁ ﬁ § m EI For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=ZB—ME+=A=+— AL FE

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN OR LOSS, NET

5. HEtARWESEEFE

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
FESEEK BAILEHR Ba
2014 2014 2014
—Z-mE “E-mF ZE-=fF ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T TiEx T TEL
Other income Hit A
Interest income from banks SRATHIB WA 34 142 - — 34 142
Sundry income MIEWA 1,763 89 588 381 2,351 470
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment Bfe - 34 - — — 34
Compensation Sum (note) RESBEE) — 12,733 - = - 12,733
1,797 12,998 588 381 2,385 13,379
Gain, net 6y
Net realised/unrealised gainson B8 /K2H
trading securities BEESTH - 499 - - — 499
— 499 - — — 499
1,797 13,497 588 381 2,385 13,878

Note: The compensation sum represented the shortfall of guaranteed profit
guaranteed by the vendor in favour of the Company in relation to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Creative Star Limited.
Details of the compensation sum are disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 6 May 2013 and 16 May 2013 respectively.

CBESBEERBENRE - DEIUAQF

AZH AFEBWECreative Star Limited
2HEBITRAELHRE - GREAEESEZ
HERAARAB B2 AZZE—=FHAR
AR—ZE—=FHEAT+BZAHIKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a)

Finance costs MERE
Interest on bank advances ~ ARTFREBHEEZ
and other borrowings wholly  $RTBFH K HifE &

Continuing operations

BREEXY

2014

—2-pF
HK$'000
TER

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
TEL

BRBLATE A
BRBAIEIREHRT 5HIA -

Consolidated

RE
2014
“E-mF
HK$000
TAL

Discontinued operations
BAILER

2014

—2-IEF

HK$’000

TR

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
THT

2013
—E-=E
HK$'000
FET

repayable within five years ~ ZAI8 — 12,778 - — - 12,778
Interest on promissory notes &R Z15 2 A 4,596 = — — 4,596 —
Interest on finance lease REREZAE 5 12 - - 5 12
Others Hith - 62 - = - 62
Total interest expenseon IR AFETAER

financial liabilities not at fair 2 $AEEZ FEFHX

value through profit or loss #4858 4,601 12,852 - — 4,601 12,852
Interest on convertible bond AR IES 2 KIS - 558 - — — 558
Interest expense on financial EAFE:T ABEZ

liabilities at fair value through £ BEEZFEH®

profit or loss - 558 — — — 558

4,601 13,410 - — 4,601 13,410
(b) Staff costs (including BEIRA(BEESHS)
Directors’ remuneration)
Contributions to defined ERHRRAGEIZ R

contribution retirement plans 132 136 2 2 134 138
Social security costs AERERE 282 335 - - 282 335
Salaries, wages and other & » TER E#EA

benefits 3,056 1,815 13 1,264 3,769 3,079

3,470 2,286 715 1,266 4,185 3,552
(c) Otheritems HthgH
Depreciation ik

— leased assets —HEEE 45 79 - 91 45 170

— own assets — BBEE 153 123 1,205 1,709 1,358 1,832
Auditors’ remuneration REMmME

— current year —REE 550 512 - 15 550 527

— under provision in —BEEE

prior year BETR 45 - - - 45 —
Operating lease chargesin -~ ¥J%M ¢ 2 LEHRE

respect of property rental EE3 998 917 2,115 2,647 3,113 3,564
Bad debts written off IRHR A SH 1,640 1,060 — — 1,640 1,060
Loss/(Gain) on disposal HENE  BER

of property, plant and REEE/ (ki)

equipment 7 (34) - — 7 (34)
Amortisation of intangible ~ EF/EEHH

assets 230 95 — — 230 95
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BiIE

7. TAXATION

i

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

(b)

represents:

Continuing operations
BELERY
2014

—E-mF
HK$'000
Tign

2013
-

Discontinued operation

—B-IF

(a) FREBBRAZBIRIE -

Consolidated
= A
Y=}
2014
“E-IF
HK$°000
TAL

BRIERHE
2014

HK$000
TETT

HK$’000
TER

Current tax BERsE
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax  — B2 FEH 2 12 - = 2 12
Deferred tax EREBIE (22) = - = (22) -
(20) 12 - ; (20) 12

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group has no estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013. PRC Enterprise Income Tax is computed according
to the relevant legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof during the year. The applicable PRC

income tax rate is 25% (2013: 25%)

The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before taxation per consolidated statement of

comprehensive income is as follows:

Continuing operations

(b)

Discontinued operations

HRAEBERBE-ZE—NER=-F
—=ZFE+ZA=+—BHLEEIER
BBELETAGTERTER - Bt
WERETEFSHRIELRE - £
FEEFEHRIIRIEZE 2 HEE
# REREFFE - BRATEFRE
BB EA25%(ZF—=F : 25%) °

FRBEMAXEFS2EBRBERAT
BB IR 2 HARMT ¢

Consolidated

BEESER CRIEERK &a
2014 2014 2014
—E-mF —E-mE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THx T#x T#x Tix THT TiEx

Loss before taxation BEIEE (19.648)  (49059) (35200  (5511)  (23,168)  (54570)
Taxation charge at the ERHEH

Hong Kong Profits tax rate ~ %{%16.5%

of 16.5% (3.241)  (8,063) (580) (644)  (3821)  (8707)
Tax effect on non-deductible ~ RAIHIRER 2%

expenses ge 643 3,395 279 4 922 3,399
Tax effect of non-taxable BEFHBA 2B

income ye ) (674) (97) - (101) (674)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KR KB AR

not recognised R E 2,426 5,354 398 640 2,824 5,994
Effect of different tax rates KB A RREM

of subsidiaries operating in AERELE

other jurisdictions BzzEyE 156 - - - 156 -
Actual tax expenses BRBIERY (20) 12 - = (20) 12
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

94

8.

The remuneration of each director for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and section 78 of schedule
11 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which
requires compliance with section 161 of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), are as follows:

EEME

RIBAIZER LW RB R BB R AKRGIE
622E M R 1156 781% - BFAIE B D AF
PIZE32E MR 1613K B 2 FES A F E

T -

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
E = 3:1
ExHe REYFS BIRGHEMER @st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR FHET FHET
2014: —E-F
Executive Directors HITES
Au Yeung Yiu Chung (note i) B R (Aati) - 56 3 59
Lin Yan Jenny (note v) Mk (fiztv) - 315 15 330
Wu Wenbei (note vi) R (Hratvi) - 345 - 345
Woo Sai Man Stephen (note xi) AR (fatxi) - - - -
Zhang He (note xij) SRR (HfzZxii) - - - -
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (note xiii) 1AL (Ffazxiii) 30 - - 30
Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (note xiv) MER(frztxiv) 120 - - 120
Lau Shu Yan (note x) 2I%tA (Hfztx) 5 - - 5
Liu Kwong Sang (note xv) BEE (Hfztxv) 115 - - 15
Yiu Yuen Kai (note xvi) BT iE (Matxvi) 105 - - 105
He Qinglong (note xvii) RIEERE (Mfazxvii) 10 - - 10
385 716 18 1,119
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8. EEM=#®)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Au Yeung Yiu Chung, appointed as executive director on 10 March
2012 and resigned as executive director on 1 April 2014.

(i) Chan Yun Fai, appointed as executive director on 10 March 2012 and
resigned as executive director on 22 November 2013.

(i) Yip Man Yi, appointed as chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”)
and executive director on 10 April 2012 and resigned as Chairman and
executive director on 10 April 2013 and 2 October 2013 respectively.

(iv) Zhao Tuanjie, appointed as chairman and executive director on 10
April 2013 and resigned as chairman and executive director on 10
June 2013.

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees in kind  contributions Total
e o2n
EEHe REYRSE BAGHEMER #ct
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET T TET
2013: —E—=F:
Executive Directors HITE=S
Au Yeung Yiu Chung (note i) B IRE (fati) — 183 10 193
Chan Yun Fai (note ii) W& (ffatin) — 169 9 178
Lin Yan Jenny (note v) Mk (fizv) — 179 — 179
Wong Chun Hung (note xviii) =R (Hatxviii) — 58 3 61
Wu Wenbei (note vi) R (Hiztvi) — 159 — 159
Yip Man Yi (note iii) E B8R (i) — 195 10 205
Zhao Tuanjie (note iv) B (Mtiv) — 111 — 111
Non-executive Director *HTES
Lau Kin Hon (note vii) LI2E (Mt vii) 83 — — 83
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Chiu Koon Shou (note viii) HEE (Hztvii) 108 — — 108
Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (note xiii) AR (2t xiii) 13 — — 13
Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (note xiv) WER(Hatxiv) 40 — — 40
Lau Shu Yan (note x) ZIR%t A (Hfztx) 120 — — 120
Li Kwok Chu (note ix) ZEE (fitix) 100 — - 100
464 1,054 32 1,550
Notes: BiaE -

BERENR-ZE-——F=A+ARZERAT
EZYN-_T-NFMNA—-ABREITES -

REER —E2-—F=A T HEZERIITE
BUYR-F-=F+-A-+-HBREWTE
=o

RHEHRR -2 -——FNATRAEZEREQF
FRMEFDRPFTEZAN T —=FNA
TRAR-Z-—=FtA-AREEIFERITE
Ho

HEEN -_ZE—=FNA+REZEAERER
HITEE  WR=ZB—=FA+HBIEE
RHTES -
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8.

96

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(v) Lin Yan Jenny, appointed as executive director on 27 May 2013 and
retired as executive director on 20 May 2014, re-appointed as an
executive director on 23 May 2014.

(vi) Wu Wenbei, appointed as executive director on 20 June 2013 and a
chairman of the Company on 1 October 2014.

(vii) Lau Kin Hon, appointed as non-executive director on 4 March 2013
and resigned as non-executive director on 2 October 2013.

(viii) Chiu Koon Shou, appointed as independent non-executive director on
20 April 2012 and resigned as independent non-executive director on
25 November 2013.

(ix) Li Kwok Chu, appointed as independent non-executive director on 16
March 2012 and resigned as independent non-executive director on 31
October 2013.

(x) Lau Shu Yan, appointed as independent non-executive director on 11
July 2012 and resigned as independent non-executive director on 16
January 2014.

(xi) Woo Sai Man Stephen, appointed as executive director on 20 May
2014 and resigned as executive director on 23 May 2014.

(xii) Zhang He, appointed as executive director on 20 May 2014 and
resigned as executive director on 23 May 2014.

(xiii) Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, appointed as independent non-executive
director on 22 November 2013 and resigned as independent non-
executive director on 1 April 2014.

(xiv) Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa, appointed as independent non-executive director
on 2 September 2013.

(xv) Liu Kwong Sang, appointed as independent non-executive director on
16 January 2014 and retired as independent non-executive director on
20 May 2014, re-appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 23 May 2014.

(xvi) Yiu Yuen Kai, appointed as independent non-executive director on 16
January 2014 and resigned as independent non-executive director on
1 December 2014.

(xvii) He Qinglong, appointed as independent non-executive director on 1
December 2014.

(xviil) Wong Chun Hung, appointed as executive director on 2 October 2013
and resigned on 31 December 2013.

There was no amount paid to any Directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. Except Mr. Woo Sai Man Stephen and Ms. Zhang
He have waived their remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2014, there was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2014 and the corresponding period
in 2013.
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(v) MBpR-B-—=FEFTA=-t+LBREZEEHT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments, two (2013: two) are Directors, whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments for
the five individuals are so follows:

9. REHFMAL

hEBRRHFMATHIRE(ZE—=F :
MB)RBES » REZMESHHE8WE -
RN ZBERENT -

2014 2013

—E—mF —E—=fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT T T

Salaries and other emoluments HeRkEMmie 1,460 2,118
Retirement scheme contributions EIRET B 48 56
1,508 2,174

The emoluments of three (2013: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

=R(ZE-=F WMB)RSHFHALZ
e FUAT EE :

2014 2013
—g-mFE  —F-=
Numbers of Numbers of
individuals individuals
N A"
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,00058 7T 3 1
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000 7t £2,000,0005& 7T — 1

10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of HK$12,828,000
(2013: loss of HK$26,835,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Fountain City Group

During the year ended 31 December 2014, pursuant to the
agreement entered between the Company and Diwang
Limited (the “Vendor”) in connection to the acquisition of the
51% equity interest of Fountain City Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Fountain City Group”) dated on 7 October 2010,
the Vendor irrevocably granted to the Company the put option
exercisable at any time and from time to time during the option
period by notice in writing to the Vendor to require the Vendor
to purchase all the option shares from the Company at the
option exercise price.

10. ZATRREREAREER

AARREFEARGAFERSBEE
¥EE1812,828,0008 T (=2 —=%F : 518

26,835,000/87T) * ZEIREEA R AWK
HRAEE

1. ERLEER
RIBEE
BE-_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLFE -

REANRAEFTEERARD(EL DA
FAUWERHERERAARANBEQF
([RFEE D1 %EETL AR/ -F
—ZF+ALAZWHE  BEARHENRE
AR B ] % A~ B S R B 240 3% 7 AR 2 B )
FATERG R - AR T T UEEBAL
NEABEHES @ BREGRMETEER
BEARDRMEHERD

Annual Report 2014 Z—Z—[UFEF3R 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁim* EI For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ =2 —ME+=A=+—HLEE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

98

Fountain City Group (Continued)
The Company may only exercise the put option on the
conditions that:

(i) the gross profits of the Fountain City Group for the first
period shall be less than HK$15,000,000; or

(ii) the gross profits of the Fountain City Group for the second
period shall be less than HK$30,000,000.

For the purpose of ascertaining the gross profits for the first
period or as relevant, the second period, the Vendor and the
Company shall jointly instruct and direct the auditors for the
time being of the Fountain City Group to issue the auditors’
certificate stating the amount of actual gross profits for the first
period or as relevant, the second period before the date falling
two months from the end of the first period or as relevant, the
end of the second period.

The rights of the Company to exercise the put option shall be
restricted to within one month from the date of the issuance
of the auditors’ certificate for the first period or as relevant,
the second period (the “option period”) and the right of the
Company to exercise the put option shall lapse after expiration
of the relevant option period.

The Vendor has acknowledged to the Company that the actual
gross profits for the second period is less than HK$30,000,000
and the Vendor and the Company agreed to waive the
requirement for the issuance of the auditors’ certificate. The put
option was exercised by the Company on 28 December 2012.

The directors has served an option notice on the Vendor
under the agreement stating its intention to exercise the put
option and required the Vendor to purchase the option shares
from the Company at the pre-agreed option exercise price of
HK$58,650,000.

Completion of the disposal will take place 180 days of the later
of: (i) the Option Notice being received by the Vendor; or (ii)
any regulatory authorisations, consents or approvals being
obtained.

Completion of the disposal is conditional upon satisfaction of
any regulatory authorisations, consents or approvals being
obtained (including all regulatory authorisations under the GEM
Listing Rules in relation to the disposal and the passing of all
the necessary resolution(s) by the independent shareholders
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Loss from Discontinued Operations and Assets Held

1. BRIEEK (&
(a) ERIEBCEERSELHESE

for Sales

The analysis of the loss from the Fountain City Group
presented as discontinued operations in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations” is as follows:

RPEE BB REETBMH
EERESHE FEHEZFRDE

T:

ERCELLER 2P HEK XKW

Fountain City Group
RFEE

2014

—E-mF
HK$’000
FTExT

2013
—E—=

HK$’000

FEIT

Loss for the year from FERERIEEKEER
Discontinued operation
Turnover (note 4) &R (Mrat4) 1,891 592
Cost of sales HERA (32) (103)
Gross Profit EF 1,859 489
Other income and gain, net (note 5)  E MUt A K UR 25 7B 58 (F12#5) 588 381
Operating and administrative KERTHEAX
expenses (5,967) (6,381)
Loss from operation KR (3,520) (5,511)
Finance costs (note 6a) RLE AN (Hrat6a) — =
Loss before taxation from RECKRIEEE
discontinued operations BRE AT E A (3,520) (5,511)
Taxation iR — —
Loss from discontinued operations REEEERERRE
recognised in the consolidated BRIEEK
Statement of profit or loss BB (3,520) (5,511)
Loss attributable to: BT ATFE(EESTE -
Equity holders of the Company RATREZE A (1,913) (2,892)
Non-controlling interests IR (1,607) (2,619)
(3,520) (5,511)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Analysis of the Cash Flows from Discontinued
Operations and Assets Held for Sales

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

1. CRILEE (&)
(b) RECARILEERZHEERERISFEY

EZEEDH

i“"%vﬁib(ﬁﬁﬁﬁ)/ﬁﬁ
&

Year ended
31 December
2014
BE—Z—UF
+=A=1-H
IEFE

Fountain
City Group
RIFEH
HK$’000
FHET

(24)

Year ended
31 December
2013

HE-Z—=
+=B=+—8
IEFE

Fountain
City Group
RIpEE
HK$’000
:F/%E

Net cash used in investing activities ?_xﬁlﬁibﬁﬁﬁﬁ &R — (25)
Net cash used in financing activites ~ BIEEEIFTRER S FE (79) (75)
(103) 117
(c) Assets held for sales (c) BEHEZEE
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Fountain City R-ZE—WFE+=-A=+—H W
Group classified as held for sales as at 31 December 2014 %l?ﬂiiﬂkhfﬁtﬂEZEEﬁE&E
are as follows: BERIWT

Assets

&E
FTESRIA

2014
—E-mE

HK$’000
TExT

Derivative financial instruments

— Put Options — Roh ke 52,650 58,650
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 1,152 2,358
Other receivables, deposits and HAEWRIE « IRE R

payment 4,579 4,963
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUR T A B FE 15 AR 2 AR

equity holders of subsidiaries BB ARIE 799 799
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRIRE 72 175
Assets classified as held for sale PEABEHEZEE 59,252 66,945
Liabilities a1
Other payables and accrued charges EfhE{RIER ETE A 10,154 10,475
Receipt in advance FEU RIS 17 17
Amount due to a related company A —EEE A RFIE 918 918
Amounts due to directors ENESEHE 23,960 21,734
Finance lease payable EBmERE 195 273
Liabilities directly associated with BB EEEERBEEMAA

assets classified as held for sale BEHEZEE 35,244 33,417
Net assets directly associated with HHEEEEEEHECEEFE

disposal group (excluding non- (T EEFERER)

controlling interests) 24,008 33,528

KREEZERARDLF
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12. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
followings data:

Loss

12. BREE
(a) REBELERCKRIEER

AREHEEABESRERNR B EE
BIRET BB

iR

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t=-A=+—HIEE
2014 2013

=F—MF =F-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per st EERERERE 2
share (loss for the year attributable /&8 (A AFEA A

FERx FERT

to owners of the Company) ELFRER) (23,148) (54,582)
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss ~ FisTEEREEEE -
per share 18 (23,148) (54,582)

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s options and warrants
because the exercise prices of those options were higher
than the average market price for shares for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 is the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during both years.

The diluted loss per share from continuing operations for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is equal
to the basic loss per share as the outstanding convertible
bonds and share options were anti-dilutive.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholder of the
Company of HK$19,926,000 (2013: HK$50,582,000) and
the weighted average of 560,137,000 (2013: 162,790,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BE-Z—NER-_ZF—=F+ZA8
=t—HLEEE >  HRETQATZBEBR
RIEESRIRONEEIHE  HR
HESREESESTEREZLSE
PRFER LT o

HREZ-ZE-—NER-_ZT—=F
+Z A=+ —BLEFEIEEITES
ZEBBENEELSER  HMEWE
ANEREEEIEHESREREFHE
|§-|O

HRARRBABERESRBRES
REBEER MBE-ZE-NER=
E-—=F+-_A=+—HLEEKH
SELLER v BRBEFEEBASERN
BREKRERE -

BREARBEESEDRERAQTE
BRRESE AELEE19,926,000
BL(=ZF— =% : 50,582,000
) REACBITEER 2 MEF
5 #560,137,000 R (=B — = F :
162,790,0008% ) 515 o
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 12. EREBEB(E
(a) From continuing and discontinued operations (a) REBFELERCKRILER(E)
(Continued)
Number of shares REE

Number of shares
B EE
2014

—E-mE
’000
T

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ Fist EESRERK #EEE
shares for the purpose of basic and 2B I RE S

diluted loss per share 560,137 162,790
(b) From continuing operations (b) REFELSEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AAREBEAELRESEREER
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the ZEREARBEEEIIRET I
Company is based on the following data: EBETE

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t=-A=+—HIEE
2014 2013

=F—MF =T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THAT

Loss for the year from continuing and ZN A F#HE ABIEHRE
discontinued operations attributable  IFELE R ERIEERE 2

to owners of the Company FREE (23,148) (54,582)
Less: Loss for the year from W FRREER LR
discontinued operations E5iE 3,520 5,511
Loss for the purpose of basic and BT EREFELSEEK
diluted loss per share from BREARBEEERZ
continuing operations B8 (19,628) (49,071)
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) From continuing operations (Continued)

(c)

Basic loss per share for the continuing operations in
2014 and 2013 is calculated based on the loss from
the continuing operations of HK$18,013,000 (2013:
HK$47,690,000) and the denominators used are the same
as those detailed above at (a).

The diluted loss per share from continuing operations for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is equal
to the basic loss per share as the outstanding convertible
bonds and share options were anti-dilutive.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations
is calculated based on the loss from the discontinued
operations of HK$1,913,000 (2013: loss of HK$2,892,000)
and the denominators used are the same as those detailed
above at (a).

The diluted loss per share from the discontinued operations
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is equal
to the basic loss per share as the outstanding convertible
bonds and share options were anti-dilutive.

13. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. The reportable
segments are in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

In 2014, the Group had five (2013: four) business segments,
namely (i) travel agent services, (ii) advertising and marketing
services, (iii) securities trading, (iv) mobile application and (v)
entertainment:

Travel agent services: this segment engaged in the
provision of tourist routes and tour related services.
Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried
out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

12. BREE (&
(b) REFELELEE(F)

(c)

SEREEBNR _ZE—NFERZZ
—ZECBREANEEDRBERE
¥ E B 18,013,000 T (=8 —=
T 1 47,690,00087T) 5T EBH - mMAT
Ao RTHE E X (a)fisfmi & AR o

HRARGRBRTBRESRERER
REEER  HBE-Z2-NFER=
B-=F+-A=t+—HLFEKRH
SEREER  BREEHEEESRN
BRERES -

RECKILER

ERIEER CEBRERBRERIIREA
IF ¥ E1E1,913,0008 T (=Z8E—=
@ E5182,892,0008 7T) 5T E B Y
MmATASD &8 3 (a)frsfui & 48
|§J o

HRAREBRTBERESERBERER
REEER MBE-ZZE-NER=
E-—=H+-_A=+—HLEEKH
CRIEK - BRESEEESENE
PREARERE -

13. DERE

REBMUMPIEERHER - THREDE2
2NHXER D BEEFRRFERBARE
BEESRITHEEAEANBREEN 2H

Et_

2 o

RZZE-—NF  XEEREEEXKS
B(Z2-—=F: @) - BI()RERER

7%

(NEEREHERT ; (IEFHESH ; (iv)

BRI (vV)IREEET

FRERIE RS ¢ D B SBRMERE
AN RERERBERYE - REAKEA
BB EIRTEARLANER
(THRE DT o
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13.

104

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

— Advertising and marketing services: This segment engaged
in the provision of product advertising and promotion,
marketing agency and planning, function organization and
media project services. Currently the Group’s activities in
this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

— Securities trading: This segment engaged in trading
of Hong Kong listed securities. Currently, the Group’s
activities in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

— Mobile application: This segment engaged in the operating
rights of “Ninja in Barrel” and mobile application business
of “Patalogue”. Currently the Group’s activities in this
regard are carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong.

— Entertainment: This segment engaged in the training of
contracted artists and their assignment to advertisement
production. Currently the Group’s activities in this regard
are carried out in Hong Kong. Such business were carried
out by the disposal group and classified as discontinued
operation.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of investments in financial
assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade creditors, accruals and other payable to the services and
sales activities of the individual segments managed directly by
the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable
to those segments.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiBEBIZER AR A
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13. 7 HRE (&

DERE  BERAREAE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014
Zg-pE
Discontinued
Continuing Operations operation
RESERE BALER
Advertising
and
Travel Marketing Mobile  Unallocated
Other information agent services Security  application head office Sub-total ~ Entertainment
KERE  RERDS AR
AfyER i SHRH &5 ik 7528 LI NgF REXH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEn Tn Tén Thn Tn TEn
Revenue g
Reportable segment revenue TR RNE 40,884 6,157 - 251 - 41,29 1891 49,183
Elimination of nter-segment revenue: HEEEH - (1,500) - - - (1,500) - (1,500)
Consoldated tumover GREXE 40,884 4,657 - 251 - 45792 1,891 47,683
Profit Al
Reportable segment Profi/loss) THRENEER/ (F8) 1,074 (2,634) (50) 3n - (1,233) (2,903) (4136)
Elimination of inter-segment profits AEERREE - (1,500) - - - (1,500) - (1,500)
Reporting seqment Profit(loss) derived REFEENIEFZ
from the Group external customers THENEER/ (F8) 1,074 (4134) (50) 3n - (2,733) (2.903) (5,636)
Other income and gain,net B ARUEEE 38 - - - 1,759 1,797 588 2385
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (154) (55) - (140) (19) (428) (1,205) (1,633)
Loss on disposal of motor vehicle HERERE - m - - - (m - m
Finance costs BERA - () - - (4,596) (4,601) - (4,601)
Unallocated head office and corporate FARBATREERT
expenses - - - - (13,606) (13,606) - (13,606)
Consolidated profit{loss) before GERHEIER/ (B8)
taxation 958 (@2n) (50) 27 (16,522) (19,648) (3,520) (23,168)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
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Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

13. PR E (&)

DERE  BERARHE)

Continui
=
Advertising
Travel and
agent Marketing Unallocated
services services Security head office Sub-Total  Entertainment
HERE  EERmA AOB
T R &% BN it REXR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TiEn TET TET TiEn TET
Revenue s
Reportable segment revenue nHESBNE 23,103 9,600 = = 32703 592 33,295
Elimination of inter-segment revenue AERNEHH - - - - - - -
Consolidated turnover GREEE 23,103 9,600 - - 32,703 592 33,205
Profit et
Reportable segment Profit(loss) TREA R/ (BB 361 2,055 - - 2416 (4,002) (1,676)
Elimination of inter-segment profits AERRHYS — = — — _ _ _
Reporting segment Profit(loss) derived ~ REAEBHSEF 2
from the Groups external customers aREA R/ (B8) 361 2,055 - - 2416 (4,092) (1,676)
Other income and gain, net Ht AR & FHE 205 34 499 12,739 13,497 381 13,878
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (54) (79) - (69) (202) (1,800) (2,002)
Finance costs BERE (12) (18) (1) (13,379) (13,410) - (13,410)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREFE - - - (20402) (20402) - (20402)
Unallocated head office and FARBAAREERS
corporate expenses - - - (30,958) (30,958) - (30,958)
Consolidated loss before taxation GARHAER 520 1992 498 (52,069) (49,059) (5511) (54,570)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

13. P ERE (&)

DERE  BERAREAE)

2014
ZE-|E
Discontinued
Continuing Operations operation
EEEER BALER
Advertising
and
Travel Marketing Mobile  Unallocated
agent services Security  application head office Sub-total ~ Entertainment Total
HERE  EERDS ES
il BHRE &5 RS #ne At REy Eh
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000
TR TEx Tn TR Fin Tén TR Fn
Assets EE
Reportable segment asset IREAEEE 9,646 29 - 250 - 10,185 5,450 15,635
Non current asset FRBEE il 2 - 37,860 - 38,103 53,802 91,905
Goodill B - - - 11,614 - 1,614 - 11,614
Unallocated head office and comporate assets  K2BAATRELEE - - - - 12,547 12,547 - 12,547
Consolidated total assets GREEGR 9,887 291 - 49,724 12,547 72,449 59,252 131,701
Liabilities af
Reportable segment iabilies IREAEER (6,085) (3,905) - (320) - (10,310) (35,244) (45,554)
Deferred tax liabities EEREaE - - - (1,217) - (1,217 - (1,217)
Unallocated head office and corporate FARARAR
liabilties t28E - - - - (46,857) (46,857) - (46,857)
Consolidated total liablities FERREE (6,085) (3905) - (597) (4685 (58444 (35244 (93,688)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
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Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

13. PR E (&)

DERE  BERARHE)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REREER BALER
Adverting
Travel and Unallocated
agent marketing head
services services Security office Sub-total  Entertainment Total
RERE  EERGH FAR
o4 EHRE &% ARy it REEH #it
HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn TiEn TAT TiEn T TAT TiEn
Assets &
Reportable segment assets TRENEEE 13,060 1,502 - - 14,562 66,945 81,507
Elimination of inter-segment receivable  AERENF AL - - - - - - -
13,060 1,502 — — 14,562 66,945 81,507
Non-current assels FREEE 13,060 1502 = = 14,562 66,945 81,507
Unallocated head office and corporate K ABARER
assets PEEE - — — 31,268 31,268 — 31,268
Consolidated total assets GEREELE 13,060 1,502 — 31,268 45,830 66,945 112,775
Liabilities af
Reportable segment liabiliies THRENEEE (10,736) (3817) - - (14,553) (33.416) (47,969)
Elimination of inter-segment payable AEEENE
i
Deferred tax liabiliies BEFEEE - - - - - - -
Unallocated head office and corporate ~~ RAEAA AR
liabilties =1 — — — (4872 (4872 — (4.873)
Consolidated total liabilities GRAEAT (10,736) (3817) - (4872) (19,425) (33416) (52,842)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Geographical Segments

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the
PRC and Hong Kong. The following table provides an analysis
of the Group’s revenue and asset from external customers by
geographical location:

13. 7 HRE (&

HESE
REERFEREEMETEBELE -
TERAZBEHI ZAKERBINDEF
ZWAREEDH

Revenue from
external customers Assets
KARBINBEF BE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —E-= “E-—NEF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR THET TEx
Continuing operations FEREXY
—PRC — 40,884 23,103 9,887 13,060
— Hong Kong —&B 4,908 9,600 62,562 32,770
45,792 32,703 72,449 45,830
Discontinued operations BARILER
— Hong Kong — &R 37 151 55,099 =
— Other — Hit 1,854 441 4,153 66,945
1,891 592 59,252 66,945
Major customers FEEF

No analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution from
operations by major customers has been presented as there
is no transaction with a single external customer equal to or
greater than 10 per cent of the Group’s total revenues.

BRI EEMESE - IMNBEFETZRS
HERNBBASEWERTEZ10% @ &
WEIAREREIREFE D 2 LR
REEERDHT ©
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BWERRE
The Group TEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
B
HENELE RERRB RE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THx THx
Cost: B
At 1 January 2013 RZZE-=%—F-H 378 994 677 2,049
Exchange adjustments ERTA 6 17 15 38
Additions B 207 83 238 528
Disposals HE — — (288) (288)
At 31 December 2013 and R=Z-=%
at 1 January 2014 +ZA=+-8K
—ZE-[F-A-A 591 1,094 642 2,327
Exchange adjustments EHAE (3) (6) (6) (15)
Additions B — 33 — 33
Disposals HE - = (238) (238)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ2-DF
+=A=1+-AH 588 1,121 398 2,107
Accumulated depreciation and R ERAME :
impairment:
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=5-F—H 71 758 410 1,239
Exchange adjustments ERTA kS 2 13 34 49
Charge for the year FRAZE 17 83 102 202
Written back on disposals HERRE — — (249) (249)
At 31 December 2013 and R=Z-=%
at 1 January 2014 +ZA=1t-8K
“Z-[E-A—-H 20 854 297 1,241
Exchange adjustment EH AR (1) (6) ) (11)
Charge for the year FRZH 33 76 89 198
Written back on disposals HE R — = (69) (69)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-mF
+=-A=t—H 122 924 313 1,359
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-MF
+ZA=1-AH 466 197 85 748
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=%
+=H=+—H 501 240 345 1,086
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued)

(@) Motor vehicles and equipment of net book value of
approximately HK$Nil as at 31 December 2014 are held
under finance lease (2013: HK$118,000).

The Company

14. ¥ - MERRKRE(E
ANEMH (F)

(@) R=B—mF+=A=+—B2ZKH
FHEANZSBTZAEREREIRE

MEHEFH(ZF—=

BIT) e
RRTF

118,000

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
FF - H£B
HEYZEEE T st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FiExT FExT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2013 R=ZZE—=F—H—H 78 212 290
Additions hE — 8 8
At 31 December 2013, R-ZE—=F+—-A4
1 January 2014 and =t+—H -ZZ2—HmF
31 December 2014 —A—HBR=-Z—NNF
+=A=+—~H 78 220 298
Accumulated depreciation K TERAE :
and impairment:
At 1 January 2013 R-—Z—=F—HA—H 21 171 192
Charge for the year FAZH 4 14 18
At 31 December 2013 and R=ZE—=F+=8
at 1 January 2014 =t+t—BR=-ZE—MNF
—HA—H 25 185 210
Charge for the year FRZH 4 10 14
At 31 December 2014 R=Z—NFE+=A
=ETr=E 29 195 224
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—NFE+—A
=t+—H 49 25 74
At 31 December 2013 R=-ZZB—=F+=A4
Er=[ 53 35 88
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. BILEE

The Group KEE
Travel
agency Operating Mobile
licenses rights application Total
e R R ReEE RBEAER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET TER TER TET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
GEEY (Fff=Eb) (FftzEe)
Cost: BRA
At 1 January 2013 R=ZE-—=F—-fA—H 938 — — 938
Exchange adjustment R 42 — — 42
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—=F
at 1 January 2014 +ZB=1+—-BR
—E-mF—-A—H 980 — — 980
Exchange adjustment ERAE (15) = = (15)
Additions through acquisition of BB AR ZAE
subsidiaries — 30,000 8,000 38,000
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-NE+ZA
=t+—H 965 30,000 8,000 38,965
Accumulated amortisation and B RAERSSE
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=5—-A—H 757 — — 757
Exchange adjustment [ 5 A 37 = = 37
Charge for the year FRZH 95 — — 95
At 31 December 2013 and R-E-=F
at 1 January 2014 +=ZA=+-8k
“Z-MFE-A—H 889 — — 889
Exchange adjustment Rk (14) — = (14)
Charge for the year FRXZE 90 — 140 230
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NF
+=A=t+-—H 965 — 140 1,105
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2014 RZE—DF
+=A=+-H — 30,000 7,860 37,860
At 31 December 2013 RIE-—=F
+=A=+-A 91 = — 9
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15. BL EE (&

The Group (Continued) REE(E)

Notes: Wit -

(a) Travel agency licenses represent the rights to operate travel agency (a) MEREHRBIERTERAIMESERERIESE
business within and outside the PRC. The useful life of travel agency B2 RER o IRERERBR2ERFRATE -
licenses is 10 years.

(b) Operating rights, which was acquired through acquisition of a (b) FBUEEMENES 2 CEEERAEERSE
subsidiary, represented the Group hold the PRC operating rights of ZEIAERE 2ReERERARR 2P RHE
a mobile game app of the name “Ninja in Barrel”. The useful life of B RERCZERAFHA=F - HRERED
operating rights is 3 years. No amortisation charged for the year ended ERRKER  THEETS  HEBE—2—N
31 December 2014 since the game was still under test stage and yet F+-A=+—BLFEWEEHEER -
to launch to the market.

(c) Mobile application, which was acquired through business combination, (c) BBREBESOHESZCERERERTHRE
represented an application specifically built for mobile device user AFEBERZAPatalogue [ZFEARER &R
named “Patalogue”. The useful life of mobile application is 5 years. BEARAZEAFTFHARF -

16. GOODWILL 16. B8
The Group EH
2014 2013
—2-mF —Z2—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost: RN :
At 1 January R—A—H 20,402 20,402
Avrising on acquisition of subsidiaries BRBWEREAREE 11,614 —
At 31 December W+=A=+—~H 32,016 20,402
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEHRERSSE :
At 1 January W—HA—H (20,402) =
Impairment loss for the year FRRERE — (20,402)
At 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—H (20,402) (20,402)
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December R+=—B=+—~H 11,614 —
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16.

114

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. After
recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

nEERRERX

Mobile application

REE (H)

R —IRER A0 P WEE 2 BB T R R
ITRERPZENZEBSHCREEE
Bu((REELEM]) - RERRERSE
% BEZREECEIENT

2014
—E2-ImF

2013
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000

Tz Tz
11,614 —

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the value-
in-use calculations are those regarding the discounts rates,
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. These calculation use cash flow projection based
on infinity financial budgets approved by management. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated assuming
3.034% growth and no material change in the existing scope
of business environment and market conditions. The 3.034%
growth rates used to determine the long-term average growth
rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 17.15% (2013:
7.61%).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired
entire share capital of Patalogue Limited and therefore
recognised the goodwill of approximately HK$11,614,000 upon
the completion of the acquisition respectively. Such goodwill
has allocated to the business segment of mobile application
since acquisition.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  KBEBIZERER A
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

17. A B A B 2=
PN |

2014 2013

=F—mF —F-=

HK$°000
TR

HK$'000
TR

Unlisted shares, at cost LMD o R 98,705 50,705

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (i)  FEURFT B 2 B FIE (K122 (i) 503,458 502,858
602,163 553,563

Less: Impairment loss B OBEEE (500,106) (500,106)
102,057 53,457

Note:

(i) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment but settlement are not expected within

one year from the date of the reporting period.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affect the results, assets and liabilities of the

Group.

Name of company

ARER

Mega Field International Limited

EAERERAR

Agros (China) Investment Limited

Argos Enterprise Management
Consultant (Nanjing) Limited

(note )
BELXEEER (@x) ARAT
(i)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

establishment and registered and
operation paid up capital
ARRY/RIR BR7/2R
meny BARAHE
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of
& HKS$1 each
REEIETL

EER

Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of
B HK$1 each
1REEELZ

EER

PRC Registered capital of
hE RMB4,000,000
AR ARS

4,000,0007

pit :

() FUHEATDREREIES - %8 REETE
B - TR TR AR MR A B B e —
ot -

TREHJEIBHEAKEXE  BER
BEZHBARFE -

Proportion of ownership interest

Group’s
effective
holding

158
EBEE

100%

100%

100%

frERRgLA
Held by Held by
the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
H-ZHE
HALAREE ARfE EEEE
100% — Investment holding
REnR

— 100% Investment holding

REzR

— 100% Investment holding
REER
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

116

The Company (Continued)

Name of company

ARER

Xuzhou China International Travel
Service Limited (note i
BNEER T AR AR
(i)

Millionstar.net Inc

Stars Manufacturing Limited
PREXAERRAA

Brilliant Reach Investments Limited

Fountain City Holdings Limited
SHBRERAR

Santos Group Entertainment and
Advertising Limited

Macau Talent Academy Limited
L ISVEL T

M & M Entertainment Intemational
Company Limited

Place of incorporation/

establishment and
operation
HRAL/RLR
ey

PRC

HE]

British Virgin Islands
ABRIES

Hong Kong
B4

British Virgin Islands
ABRLES

British Virgin Islands
ARRLHE

British Virgin Islands
AERIHS

Macau
5

Hong Kong
B4

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Particulars of issued/
registered and
paid up capital
BR1/2Rk

BARAzE

Registered capital of
RMB1,500,000
iftEEARE
1,500,00070

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REE1%TZ
Lk

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
10,0008k
HEETZ SRR

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REE

X2 EER

50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

50 000REHAE
1ETEER

5 ordinary share of
US§1 each
SREGEIXT
EER

Registered capital of
MOP$2,500,000
&R
2,500,000 7

10,000 ordinary shares of
HKS$1 each
10000RER AE
1B ZEER

KREEZERARDLF

17. RMIB AR 2R (&

ARTE(E)
Proportion of ownership interest
il { 3+0d7]
Group’s
effective Held by Held by
holding ~ the Company a subsidiary
A5E H-ZHE
R BR0ARE G
90% — 90%
100% — 100%
51% — 51%
100% 100% —
51% — 51%
51% — 100%
51% — 100%
30.6% — 60%

Principal activity

TERH

Provision of tour services
and transportation

RHEBRERES

Investment holding

REgR

Dormant

LEES ]

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REgR

Production of entertainment
programmes and
advertisement

RESEREEHE

Operation of artist training
school in Macau
RAMEEEAIRER

Production of entertainment
programmes and provision of
artist management services

REHRRERRIEA
Sl
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

The Company (Continued)

Name of company

ARER
Asiakey Holdings Limited

Smart Hero Enterprises Limited

Solution Gold Limited

Creative Star Limited

BEARLT

Hong Kong Marketing
Service Limited

Miracle Glorious Limited

Pro-King Corporation Limited

AR

Fame Network Limited

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

operation
BRI/ RLR
BEnd

British Virgin Island
ABRLES

British Virgin Island
RBRLES

British Virgin Island
RERIES

Vanuatu
REME

Hong Kong
o

British Virgin Island
ABRLHE

Hong Kong
B4

British Virgin Island
ABRIES

Particulars of issued!/
registered and
paid up capital
BRf1/2RR

BaRAHE

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REE1XR
ZEER

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REEIR
ZLEER

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REEIET
ZERR

10,000 ordinary share of
US§1 each

10,000 EfE
1En2EER

10,000 ordinary shares of
US§1 each
10,000 B REE
1Zn2EER

50,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

50 000RERAE
1B EER

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
10000RERAEE

1B ZEBR

50,000 ordinary share of
US$1 each

50,000 EE
1ZTZEBR

17. A B AT 2= (&

AR ()
Proportion of ownership interest
frERRgLA
Group's
effective Held by Held by
holding  the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
158 H-FHE
ENGE  mALNARE AIBE IEER
100% 100% —  Investment holdings
REER
100% — 100% Dormant
EELH
100% 100% — Investment holdings
REZRK
100% 100% — Investment holdings
REZR
60% — 60% Advertising and media
project services
BERRBER R
100% 100% — Securities investment
FrlRE
100% 100% — Money lender
LU
100% 100% — Investment holdings
REER
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17. RMIB AR 2R (&

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

The Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/
establishment and registered and
Name of company operation paid up capital
AT BRf1/Rk
ARER mEny BARAGE
Leading Global INC Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of
58 HKS$1 each
10000 E(E
1B EER
Prosperous Link Investments British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of
Limited ABRLEE US$1 each
50,000 EE
X EER
Yongyao Technology PRC Registered capital of
(Jiang Xi) Co. Ltd G HK$7,000,000
(note i) (ki) HHEA
7,000,000%7
Worthy Victory Limited British Virgin Island 1 ordinary share of
ABRLHEE US$1 each
1REE
1ET2EER
Patalogue Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of
TELERAR B# HK$1 each
10000RE(E
1Rz EER

Notes:

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as wholly foreign-owned

enterprise.

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability enterprise.
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ARTE(E)
Proportion of ownership interest
il {3+
Group's
effective Held by Held by
holding  the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
A58 H-ZHE
EREE  mALERE AARE EEEE
100% 100% —  Investment holdings
REZR
100% 100% — Investment holdings
RERR
100% — 100% Sale and Production; Import
and Export Trade Domestic
Trade of Clothing
LEHERE ELOER
KERES
100% 100% — PRC operating rights of
mobile application
i) sl
100% 100% — Mobile application business
ikl

BeE
() REFEEEEIMRIBHERE -

(i) RBEPEEAETIMAERETLE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:

Name of subsidiary

MEARER

Hong Kong Marketing
Service Limited

Place of
incorporation and
principal place of
business
AR i B R
FTERERNH

Hong Kong
&

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting
rights held by non-
controlling interests
FERERERZ
FARERL AR FAE
2014 2013
“E-mE —2-=F%
HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR

40% 40%

17.

REE D F 2 (A

BREERFERERZHF2ENE D A
&
TRESNFEEEAFERES 2 NEEF
2EMBLRFE

Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
controlling interests controlling interests

FERERDERA Rt R ER
2014 2013 2014 2013

ZE-{F ZE-=-F ZBE-OF —F-=F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TEx TERT TER

(1,708)  (1,324)  (2,370) (662)

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

{ERIER RS 2
FEAWBLA

(17,287)  (15,773)
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED) 17. RIB AR 2 s (F

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests (Continued)

(i) The principal activity of Hong Kong Marketing Service
Limited is Principal activity is Advertising and media project
services. Although the Group has only 60% ownership
in Hong Kong Marketing Service Limited, the directors
concluded that the Group has a sufficiently dominant
voting interests to direct the relevant activities of Hong
Kong Marketing Service Limited on the basis of the
Group’s absolute size of shareholding and the relative size
of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by other
shareholders.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations:

Hong Kong Marketing Service Limited

BEEAFERERZHLZEWB AT

15 (&)

(i) Hong Kong Marketing Service
Limitedz TEXBAEERIEEIIER
R - REAREEE#HEBEHong Kong
Marketing Service Limited 60%ff&
# BEERRAEEEERDEEXR
AERAEEERECEBHRERH
MR RAEE 2HEEREBRER D
i 2 %8 RHong Kong Marketing
Service Limited 2 fBEEEE) o

FRBREEAFERES ZAKEZHE
DA ZFBERBIMMNT  THFHEER
B2 ENBREBE AN B R MERN 2S5

Hong Kong Marketing Service Limited

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —E2—-=

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET Fix

Current assets MENEE 289 1,269

Non-current assets FREBEE 2 227
Current liabilities FBEE (6,866) (3,781)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE — (20)

Equity attributable to owners of RARER AEGRERS
the Company (4,205) 3,310
Non-controlling interests IR (2,370) 1,005
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y
ﬂ#ﬁ ﬁ § Bﬁ' EI For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=ZB—ME+=A=+— AL FE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

Hong Kong Marketing Service Limited (Continued)

17. A B AT 2= (&

Hong Kong Marketing Service Limited

(48
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
8= S
—E—MF
+=—A=+—H
IHEE
HK$’000
FExT
Revenue Wz 6,157 9,600
Loss and total comprehensive expense FRFER AR A
for the year (4,270) (3,310)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  ZNA FEH AFE(S
attributable to owners of EEREHAERE
the Company (2,562) (1,324)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEE R R AL
attributable to the iRk EHEE AL
non-controlling interests (1,708) (1,986)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREBEMNR
for the year T HEBAXEE (4,270) (3,310)
Net cash outflow from RELETE2RERE
operating activities FEE (4,291) (3)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RERETH2RERAN
investing activities (Fd) 35 92 (165)
Net cash inflow from REBETBZHERA
financing activities THEE 4,155 68
Net cash outflow HERLF5E (44) (100)
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE N T 2
The Group
REE
2014 2013
=F—MF =F—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FER

Unlisted shares, at cost R ETBRAD » AR 30,709 30,709

Share of post-acquisition losses and BB ZEERR

other comprehensive income, Hithir g Was » FRE

net of dividend (2,115) (2,115)

28,594 28,594

Amounts due from associates i & NI 8,054 2,054

36,648 30,648

Impairment loss recognised ERFAREEE (30,648) (30,648)

6,000 —

(@) Amount due from associates are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment but settlement are
not expected within one year from the date of the reporting
period.

(b) Interests in associates at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013 include goodwill of HK$15,281,000.
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(a) BUBELNTRBREER 2ER
ZEETESY  ERBTERKREH
B H st —F RfEE -

(b) AZE—NE+=-B=+—HR=Z
—=#+=A=+—0 REELH
2R (BIEBHE) 515,281,000/ 7T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂ#ﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

18. REE&E NTF 2R (E

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(c) The movements in accumulated impairment loss is
summarised as follow:

(c) RETREBEREZBHMMT

2014

—E-mF

HK$°000

FExT
At 1 January m—B—H 30,648 30,648
Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE — =
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 30,648 30,648

(d) Details of the associate at 31 December 2014 are as
follows:

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

establishment registered and

Name of company and operation paid up capital
ML/ HIR BEfT/ERR

ARER ey Lt et
Star Most Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of
EEERAR & HKS$1 each
10000REREE

1B EER

Fiorucci Limited Hong Kong 4,000,000 ordinary shares of
B HKS1 each

4,000 000 B REE

T2 EER

d) R=Z2-NEF+-A=+—-HZEE
B A RN

Proportion of ownership interest
Lt 4 3A]
Group's
effective Held by Held by
holding ~ the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
v d | H-ZHE
BREE  mADARAE ARRE TEXE

30%

30%  Investment holding

REER

26.25%  Retail and wholesale and
franchise of fashion
products

TERHBREER
Nt EE

26.25%
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(e) The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associate extracted from their
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014:

Assets BE
Liabilities =0
Revenues g
Losses 518

18. REEE DR 2R (&

(e) THREMAEBMPE N 2B H
R AR EAEERE QAR
EE-NFE+ZA=+—HILEE

ZEBREAMBRE

2014 2013

—2-ImF =Z—=
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHRT

6,150 442

25,615 18,461

44 84

(f) At 31 December 2014, the directors of the Company
reviewed the carrying values of the associates, based on
the assessment of directors that the associate’s profit or
loss net liabilities position and long-term loss, the directors
are of the opinion that an impairment loss HK$Nil (2013:
HK$15,220,000) should be provided in the profit or loss.

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

() R=B—NE+=-A=+—H " &2
AEBREEREEMEBEMFERZE
NEERE  BHBE AT ZERMA
B REZESEHEELATzEE 8
BFERRBEBENNG  EERAA
REERATRABESERESET
(=ZZE—=4%:15,220,000/87T) °

19. REE DT ZEDE

The Group
REE
2014

—E-IF
HK$°000
THET

HK$'000
TR

Unlisted shares, at cost I LEmIRGD » BRA 1,500 1,500
Share of post-acquisition losses and LR R EE R R

other comprehensive income, REZEMEEIRA

net of dividend (1,373) (1,373)
Impairment loss reocgnised ERREEEE (127) (127)
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Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 19. AEE DRI ZER(E
(a) Details of the joint ventures at 31 December 2014 are as (@) RZE—NFE+-A=+—HzE%
follows: AEFHFWOT ¢
Proportion of ownership interest
FrERRRLH
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/ Group's
establishment registered and effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital holding  the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
MR/ RLK BR/ERR 158 H-FHE
ARER ey Bdbkaxts  BRNE  BALRER NARE FEEE
Victory Team Group Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of 51% — 51% Investment holding
REEERAR AREAHS USS1 each REER
100REREE
1% EER
Excel Vantage Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 51% — 51%  Organising concerts
ERREERAR & HKS$1 each and singing concerts
1REEET ENRESRIELE
ZEER

Notwithstanding the Company’s subsidiary has greater BEAQAGAMBELAREELFEZEFHSERB
than 50% equity interest in the jointly controlled entities, 50%J%#E » NEBIEHHEEHEE - ES
the Group does not have control over the board of the EEEEHI#E - RIEMRHE - LEEHEE
jointly controlled entities. According to the shareholders T3 B R L E2 4] -

agreement, the jointly controlled entities are under common

control by the shareholders.

The summarised financial information of the jointly WEKEAREHEE 2 BEHEER  FRHE

controlled entities has not been disclosed as the amountis R&£ZEIAEK
insignificant.

Annual Report 2014 Z—Z—[9FEF3R 125



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZ R EMEWTIE
The Group The Company
TEH PN
2014 2014
—2-QmF B—= —2-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT FEx FTEx FEx
Trade debtors (note a&b) FEURBR R (Mfztakb) 913 1,456 — —
Other receivables HAt KRR 3,542 26,379 — 24,200
Rental and other deposits HeRkHEMize 1,247 3,523 1,200 1,868
Loans and receivables BRREWFRIE 5,702 31,358 1,200 26,068
Prepayments FE{SFIE 1,584 6,590 660 150
7,286 37,948 1,860 26,218
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BREDH
An ageing analysis of trade debtors at the end of reporting EUERFRBRESHEEE R 2Rk D
period is as follows: AT
The Group
rEE
2014
—E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET Fix
Within 1 month —EAR 369 243
More than 1 month but within BRE—EAER=EAR
3 months 195 119
More than 3 months but within R =1EBERSER R
6 months 196 115
More than 6 months BB~ E A 153 979
913 1,456
Trade debtors are generally granted with credit terms FEWBRR — R ERF N F30H ZE180
ranging from 30 days to 180 days. The Group may, on a AZ2EEH - REETRERERRE
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business RIFGEEBRBEEREEREEPER
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period EREEH -

upon customers’ requests.

126  EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  JKiB&EEIZERER AT



20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂ#ﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

20. B 5 R H At EWKIE ()
(b) 3 SRR 1E 2 FE UL B SK

9.1 59 £ 4 4 LA 2 A U B
IR AT

The Group
rEE
2014

—E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTHExT

Neither past due nor impaired BE S R R AR (B 563 1,456
Less than 1 month past due BELR—{EA 350 —
913 1,456

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

21. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

—g-mE
HK$’000
FB

Restricted bank deposits solely — FRE/CIEE ZHER
represent a statutory deposit for SEEZEEZ
travel agency ZIRHIRITER

quality guarantee 1,778

The Group

BE 428 30 A 77 S O M o PR WKURR IR I SR
ZIMWRIER LB 2EF -

CEMERRBEERRESIRS S
EASEARFERLCHEZBYLE
Fe-ERBELER HMNMEEERYL
BHREAEHRBBAERDEES
AEHEE > HERERRBAMRZ
LEBRELRERE - AKEILER
RSB RETRAR o

21. ZRFBITERK

The Company
AT
2013 2014 2013

—ET-=F =—B-NEF —T-=

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT FET TR

1,732 — =
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22. BERBESEEY

The Group and The Company

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 2.86% per annum (31 December 2013: 0.01% to

1.4%).

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AEERADQT
RITHEBRIRTBENENF0.01EE2.86
EftB(ZE2—=F+=ZA=+—H :0.01
EE14E) -

23. EZ R EHMENRIR

The Group The Company
rEE b NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
=F-MEF —T-=F —FT-0mOF —FT-=
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT FTExT FBT
Trade creditors (note a) BRI (Braza) 2,154 2,443 — —
Other payables and accrued HiESRIER
charges ST E R 5,253 6,449 2,067 5,138
Amounts due to related persons FE{IEEE A £ FIE 3,010 1,746 — —
Other taxes and government HiENHIBER
surcharges payables BRI E 13 8 — —
Financial liabilities measured REHEAATEZ
at amortised cost TREE 10,430 10,646 2,067 5,138
Receipts in advance (note b) FEUGRIE (B7aED) 3,014 8,682 — —
13,444 19,328 2,067 5,138

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled

FEES K AMENFRERR—FRE

within one year or are repayable on demand. BRIZEREIE -

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BREEDHT
The ageing analysis of trade creditors at the end of the EARARBEHEEE R 2RED
reporting period is as follows: AT :

The Group
EEH
2014 2013
—E—=F
HK$'000

FE T

—2-mE
HK$’000
TR

Within 1 month —EAR 453 784
More than 1 month but within BR—EAER=MEAR
3 months 1,084 555
More than 3 months BBE=EA 617 1,104
2,154 2,443
(b) The amounts represent prepaid service income from (b) ZEFREIERBES ZFAMNRBWA -
customers, for which the related services are expected to EHEBERE A RS ESEERE

be rendered within one year from the end of the reporting

period.
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24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 24,

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles and equipment
for its business. These leases are classified as finance leases
and have fully repaid during the year ended 31 December
2014.

At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values were as
follows:

BMERERMNRE

AEEAHERAEE TRERSEME - %
CHENHEARENSE  LORBE—
2-ME+=A=t+-ALFERDHHE
%o

R-ZZ2-NF+ZA=+—RH BEHE
ET 2 ARREEERRRERARED

Minimum
lease
payments
2014

RIEER
HE
—B-ImF
HK$’000
THERT

__l

Minimum
lease
payments
2013
REKHE
FRIE
—=—=
HK$°000
FET

Present
value of
minimum
lease
payments
2014
BRIRHAE
MEZEE
—E-mF
HK$°000
FET

Present
value of
minimum
lease
payments
2013
RRKHEE
MEZHE
—E-=F
HK$’000
FET

Amounts payable: FEASFRIE ¢

Within one year —FR — 109 — 97

In the second year F-F - = — =

In the third to fifth years, Bi=sEZEESGEIsE

inclusive (BiEEEMF) — — — —

Total minimum finance lease HRKREHERIE

payments HEE — 109 — 97
Future finance charges RIRBMEE A — (12)
Total net finance lease FetEHEEMNRE

payables FEEC] — 97
Portion classified as current S EAREBEEGEZ

liabilities 5 — 97)
Non-current portion ERBEH D — =
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Mﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=Z—NF+=

25. SHORT-TERM LOAN

The Group and The Company

A=+—-HILFE

25. BHAER
AEEMBR AT

2014
“E-mE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity ~ HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ HK$'000
ERFI= ERF=
(%) FI8A TER (%) Ep:ls TEr
Current: BNER :
Loan from non-financial MR 6% 24 June 2,000 — — —
institutions — secured EX — BER 2015
—E-1fF
payz puy 1] =!

On 11 December 2014, a secured and unguaranteed loan
facility amounting to HK$2,000,000 has been granted to
the Group (“Loan Facility”). The Loan Facility was secured
by a charge over the entire issued and paid up capital of a
subsidiary of the Company — Argos (China) Investment Limited.
The interest rate is 1% over Prime Lending Rate per annum.

The Group shall repay the Loan Facility upon expiry of 6
months after the drawdown date.

26. PROMISSORY NOTES

R-ZB-—ME+ZA+—H  AEEER
F—182,000,0007%8 7T 2 3K 17 B S AE 4R & K
BE(ERBME ] - ERBMEBRA QT —
ZHBARES (FE)REZERERAT
ERLXNEHMEBRTRERER - R
AEBFRRREERNER1% -

AEBEANRRERABREANEAHBEE
BZENBE

26. AR EE

The Group and the Company

AEERAKRAT
2014 2013
—2-mE  —B-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FTHEx
At 1 January B—A—H — —
Promissory notes issued BRITERAERE
(note a, b, ¢, d and e) (Ktita > b~ c > dRe) 85,162 =
Settlement of promissory notes EHARIBEE
(note a and c) (KtztakKe) (46,758) —
Interest charge NEEH 4,596 —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 43,000 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂ*ﬁﬁiuﬁ %‘I For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE=Z—M&E+=A=+—FLLFE

26. A A RE(F)

26. PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

On 18 March 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$15,000,000 (the “P. Note 1”) for general
working capital. The P. Note 1 bears an interest of 2.5% per month
and is transferable.

The principal amount of P. Note | was fully paid on 17 June 2014.

On 16 June 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (the “P. Note 2”). The P. Note
2 bear an interest of 30% per annum and fall due on 15 September
2014.

According to supplemental agreement dated on 29 December 2014,
China Times Finance Limited (the “Lender”) agreed to amend the
repayment date to 31 January 2015. The Group have to pay the
Lender the interest expenses of the loan from 16 September 2014 to
31 January 2015 in approximately HK$ 2,268,000.

On 25 August 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 (the “P. Note 3”) for the completion
of the acquisition Worthy Victory Limited. The P. Note 3 bears interest
at 2% per annum and fall due on 24 August 2015. The Company has
the right to redeem in full or in part of the P. Note 3 prior to the maturity
date.

The Company repaid the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 on 30
December 2014 and the noteholder agreed to waive any accrued
interest payable to him.

On 17 November 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$18,000,000 (the “P. Note 4”) for the completion
of the acquisition Patalogue Limited. The P. Note 4 bears interest at 2%
per annum and fall due on 17 November 2015.

The Company has the right to redeem in full or in part of the principal
amount of the P. Note 4 prior to the maturity day.

On 17 December 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$5,000,000 (the “P. Note 5”) for general working
capital. The P. Note 5 bears an interest of 24% per annum and fall due
on 16 February 2015.

The Company may not redeem all or part of the principal amount of the
P. Note 5 prior to the maturity date.

Due to the short maturity date, the carrying amount of promissory note
approximates to its fair value.

pit :

(@) R=Z—MNF=A+NA  XAFBITEEH
15,000,00058 T 2 AR EiE ([ R A EE— )
EHE—REEES - AREE—TIRAEEA
2.5%% 8 WA TEE o

ARBEE -2 AEER=ZT—TFEARA+LH
Ex - Cab

(b) R=ZZB—IWFEARA+AB > RNATARITEEA
20,000,000 T 2 E& A EZE (R LEE=]) °
A EE R EEFEI0%E  AR=F
—mNEARB+RAZE -

REBHA-_Z—NF+_A=-+tHBZ@E
Zt#3% » China Times Finance Limited([ &
RADEAEEREERPE-_ZS—HF—A
=+ —H - AEEAAZNERSFERE=Z
—mERB+ARE-E—RF—A=+—H
12 R BRI #92,268,000/8 7T ©

(c) R=Z—MENA=+EHAB  FARBITEE
#330,000,00058 T 2 F 5 RIE (R EEE= )
BL5E A U BEWorthy Victory Limited o & 3 Z 4%
=DRAREE2%E  IR=ZF—-HEN
B=+HAZE - XABEEREIE B AIEE
2EHMIHEREEE= -

AABER-E—NF+-_A=THEELSE
30,000,000/ T ZEIFE AR EERREME
FFHE2RE o

(dy RR-ZZ—NF+-—A++tA RAFETE
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27.

132

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group and the Company

CONVERTIBLE BONDS THAT CONTAIN EQUITY
COMPONENT

On 28 March 2011, an aggregate principal amount of
HK$60,000,000 of the zero coupon convertible bonds (the
“CB”) was issued to Premier Capital Enterprises Limited at
the conversion price of HK$0.28 (adjusted to HK$1.4 follow
the consolidation of shares of the Company in October 2011)
with the maturity date falling on the second anniversary of the
date of the issue of the convertible bonds for settlement of
promissory notes with principal amount of HK$61,855,670.

The fair values of the CB were determined by the directors
of the Company with reference to the valuation performed by
a firm of independent professional valuers with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
derivative instruments with reference to market values.

The CB contain two components, the liability and the equity
components. The fair value of the liability component was
calculated based on the present value contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the required yield,
which was determined with reference to the market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes and remaining
time to maturity. The residual amount, representing the value
of the equity conversion component is presented in equity as a
“convertible bond reserve”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—Z—ME+-A=+—HILFE

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 27. WRRES (&
The Group and the Company (Continued) AEBRADR(E)
CONVERTIBLE BONDS THAT CONTAIN EQUITY EEERE S 2 AR ER (E)
COMPONENT (Continued)
The movements in liability component of the convertible bonds R ESFEENRD 2ESBFINMNT :
were set out as follows:
HK$°000
FEx
As at 1 January 2013 R==—=%5—H—H 27,937
Imputed interest RIS 558
Conversion of Convertible Bonds HguBRES (28,495)
As at 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 R-E—=F+-A=+—H"
and 31 December 2014 —EZ—NFE—A—HK
—E-mFE+=A=+—H —
The effective interest rate of the liability component is 14.14% BER2ERFRER1414E (=
(2012: 14.14%) per annum. Interest expense on the bonds is T—_F (1414E) - EH 2R ER
calculated using the effective interest method by applying the XTERBEREEIHs Z2EMRRIZRLL

effective interest rate to the liability component. ERFZRESESE -
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. JEIEBIIE
The following is deferred tax liabilities recognised and BE_Z—NFE+-_A=+—HIEFEZ
movements thereon during the year ended 31 December 2014 EHRIELEHBEERESHOT !

Intangible
assets

BLEE

HK$'000
FET

As at 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and R=ZB—=fF—HA—H =ZZ—=F

1 January 2014 +T-A=+—HR=Z—WF—H—H —
Acquisition of subsidiary WEEHIE AR 1,299
Credited to the consolidated statement of RERFTTAEH

profit or loss during the year BEX (22)
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NE+_HB=+—H 1,277

The group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of HAEBENER EERER T EEET
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$31,228,000 (2013: ME A LUK R RERBEF » ALK
HK$14,317,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits NMABREBEETHEBENELES
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the HEE#X31,228,0008 L (ZE—=F :
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. 14,317,00058 7T) ©
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE

The Group and the Company

29. RAK #
KEBRADT

Number of
shares Amount
RGEE &8
000 HK$’000
TR FEx
Authorised EIE
As at 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 R=Z—=%—H—H »
and 1 January 2014 —E—=5+-A=t+—-HE
—ZE-—mWF—HF—H
— Ordinary share at HK$0.5 each - BREEC.SBITZEBR 2,000,000 1,000,000
As at 31 December 2014 RZZBE—NE+=A=+—H N/A TEH
(note (iv))
(Hat(iv))
Issued and fully paid ERTRHRE :
At 1 January 2013 N-—B—=F—HF—H 65,647 32,824
Issue of new shares in connection with BTEA AR ERREZHRHG
the open offer (note (i) (H1EE (D) 131,294 65,647
Issue of placing share (note (i) BATECERR D (M1 (i) 13,110 6,555
Issue of offer share with bonus B (TR ERRAD R ALRR (F12F(iii))
shares (note (iii)) 350,086 175,042
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—=F+=-HA=+—HR
at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NE—HF—H 560,137 280,068
Transfer from share premium EERREEZR AR EEE
upon abolition of par value — 474,962
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE-OF¥+ZA=+—H 560,137 755,030

Notes:

Bt -

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

In May 2013, 131,294,226 ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each in the
Company were issued at HK$0.5 per share by way of open offer. The
details were disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 April
2013.

On 25 June 2013, the Company issued and allotted 13,110,000 shares
at a price of HK$0.6 per shares by way of placing pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 11 June 2013.

On 23 December 2013, the shareholders of the Company approved
by way of poll the open offer on the basis of two offer share for every
three existing shares to the qualifying shareholders of the Company
with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for every two offer
shares taken up under the open offer, at an issue price of HK$0.5 per
offer share, resulting in the issue of 140,034,226 shares. In addition to
the open offer, a bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for
every two offers share taken up under the open offer, resulting in the
issue of 210,051,339 shares.

Par value of the Company’s shares is retired and the relevant
concepts of nominal value and share premium are abolished upon the
commencement of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on 3
March 2014.

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZE—Z=FAF 131,294 226 RERMEE
0582 A DABBRIEBAMBENL AU
BROSEBRTEIT - AHEFERAQTA RN
“E-ZFMAThAZEREE -

RZZB-=FXA-TIHA REAHER=
E-=EXA+-AZEEHE  FARFE
BERENERRMH 0.6/ T 2 ERBITREH
13,110,0008 R 5

RZB—=ZFE+ZA=+=0 ' KQFARKL
RERRANEUSHE=RBERHER
PMRBERDZEERARATEERRRET
ARRE  MARBTARBEABZEUESR
ERREERDER S RAR I EEIREGRE
EMR70.58 T 2 B1T{ER17140,034,226 % I
2 o BRABABEN  ARBITHRIBEAMBE
DEREMR R ERDER = RAR 2 BAER
17210,051,3398% B 17 °

ERBADAZROAERRAEZECR=-F
—ME= A= RERMITE B D B IRGIKEERR
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29. RAK f#& (4&

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE (CONTINUED)

(a) The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 56
to 57 of the annual report.

()

(1

SHARE PREMIUM

Share premium represents the share premium of the
Company, the application of which is governed by
section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EXCHANGE RESERVE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the consolidated financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 2(t).

(lll) STATUTORY RESERVE

Transfers from 10% of net profits to statutory reserve
fund were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association
of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted
into paid-up capital provided that the balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such conversion is not less
than 25% of their registered capital.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to transfer a minimum of 10% of their net profits, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to the statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this fund must be made before
distribution of dividends to equity holders.

(V) CONVERTIBLE BOND RESERVE

(V)

The convertible bond reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in
note 2(m)(ii).

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

The share option reserve represents the fair value of
the share options granted by the Company which are
yet to be exercised, and recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(q)(ii).

(b) Distributable reserves
As at 31 December 2014, there was no reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
(2013: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE (CONTINUED)

(c) Reserve
The Company

29. BRA R @& (&
(c) &

RN T)

Convertible Share
Share bond option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
1
R EE f5iE  BRERE RitER @it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THR TR Tin THR ThR
At 1 January 2013 WZE-=#-f-H 578,677 11,742 1,187 (651,685) (60,079)
Issue of placing shares BORERR 1311 = = = 1,311
Share option lapsed BAMEBRE - - (1,187) 1,187 -
Issue of offers share with BIRERORAR
bonus shares (105,026) — - — (105,026)
Settlement of Convertible bond BRTARES - (11,742) - = (11,742)
Loss for the year EREE - - - (26,835) (26,835)
At 31 December 2013 and RZB-Z#+ZAZ+-8K
at 1 January 2014 “2-ME-F-H 474,962 - - (677,333) (202,371)
Transfer upon abolition of par value ~ REH A FKAIEREERES
the new Companies Ordinance (474,962) - - - (474,962)
Loss for the year FRER - - - (12,828) (12,828)
At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME+=A=1-A - - - (690,161) (690,161)

30. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2013:
HK$25,000). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Retirement Scheme”)
organised by the relevant local government authorities,
whereby the Group as required to make contributions
to the Retirement Scheme at 21%—-22% of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees which are calculated based on a certain
percentage of the basic payroll.

30. EERKER

(a)

(b)

AEEREFBRFM LB IEE
Bl BEEBERKHNEEZZES
I BEtastrEestaE(BiEs
E D - BESEAARBIZIEA
BIE 2 EREMTCRIKRETE o RIBRE
258 EXRHESEFXIED
BEEHER > HRBEAREESBRA
25% - S B AW A LR A30,000
BT (ZE—=% :25000%77T) o 5t
ENEFRENRSERE -

RIBTPEEEYS TEHRRAG - A&
ESEREET S BUTKESE 2T
FEFTRRERG & ([EBIRETED
B REBAORKTEHRR
HREAECEREEFSZ221%E
22% ° #h 75 BT HLRE /B B B BRI E
EXNE2EENRS ENRELRFS
ZETEILEE -
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31.

138

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Old Option
Scheme”) which was adopted on 30 July 2001. Subject to the
terms of the Old Option Scheme, the directors may, at their
absolute discretion, invite full-time employees of the Group,
including directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
take up options to subscribe for shares.

The Old Scheme was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme” which together with the Old
Scheme, the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 9 May
2011 by the shareholders. The purpose of the New Scheme
is to enable the Company to grant options to participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or
its subsidiaries.

No options have been granted under the New Scheme since
its adoption. Details of the movements in the share options
granted and exercised during the year ended 31 December
2014 under the Old Scheme are disclosed in the section of
“Report of Directors”).

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted (together with options exercised and options
then outstanding) at any time under this scheme shall not,
when aggregated with any shares subject to any other
schemes involving the issue or grant of option over shares
by the Company, or for the benefit of the eligible participants,
exceed such number of shares as shall represent 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the adoption date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options that lapse in accordance
with the terms of this scheme will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to renew
the 10% limit provided that the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Option
Scheme together with any options outstanding and yet to be
exercised under the Option Scheme and any other schemes
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares from time to time.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION N URGDARERZARRE (B)

(CONTINUED)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that exists as at (a) RERFEZEHHFARKGDOT
year end are as follows, whereby all options are settled by MAABEREDELBEEERTR
physical delivery of shares: MEE

Number of options Vesting conditions
BREHA BRI
Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
price at during at
per share 1.1.2014 the year 31.12.2014
R-F-DF R-F-QF
-A-H t=A=1-H
BRITRE RETRE  RERXX BT
HKS ‘000 '000
BT T T
Options granted to RYESZBRE !
employees:
— 29 June 2009 —ZBENE 29.13 — — —  No vesting condition
~AZthA DRETRE R
—4 June 2010 —Z%-2F 16.09 - - —  No vesting condition
~AEA GREMSEHRE

Total share options granted  B1% HEERIEAH = = -
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION N. URGBAEBRZARKR S (&
(CONTINUED)
(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)

Upon the Share Consolidation has been effective, the
exercise prices of the options and the numbers of shares
falling to be allotted in respected of the options were
adjusted.

The options granted on 4 June 2010 have a contractual life
from 4 June 2010 to 3 June 2020. The options granted on
29 June 2009 have a contractual life from 29 June 2009 to

RRDEHERE  BREZITEE
REBREMSTREZROBES

RZZE-SEXANBEEBRE
ZENHRA-ZZE-ZEEAANBEZE
—EZZEEXRB=ZH RZBEAE

28 June 2019. RNRAZTABERHZBREZSHH
RAE-—ZTZAEAA-TNABE=Z

—hEXRABZ+tNB -
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) BREZHE RINEFITEEMT :

share options are as follows:

2014

PANK

=F-mF —F-=F

Weighted
average
exercise

price
AEFS
fTEE

Weighted
average
Number exercise Number
of options price of options
Y
BREHA TEE  BREHE
‘000 ‘000
T4 T4

Outstanding at the beginning ~ AEI#DE R1T HK$20.317
of the period — —  20317%Tx 171
Effect of open offer/and DNEEE TRHG N/A N/A
Share Consolidation EzEE TEA — TEA 19
Forfeited during the period RERER K HK$17.977
— — 17.97TET (190)
Exercisable at the end of RERAFITE N/A N/A
the period TEA - TiE A —
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M. UROABERZNRRS (A

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(c) BREZAFERRER

The fair value of services received in return for share
options grants is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the share options granted is measured based on a
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.

FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

LA B8 PR PR AF [ 3R M R BUAR 7% 2 2
FEDESERXHBREZ 2 FE
FtE o TR HBRE 2 D FEMETS
ZERhR -HHEATBEEEEN
E-BREZEVNFHSBELEX
2B AR - FHIERITETIFAM
hxw - EFRETHEEERS -

BREZ 2N FERER

4 June 2010 29 June 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Date of offer to grant options RERHEREDH ANAME ABA=tAhB
Fair value at measurement date REt2EEHZ2AFEE HK$0.091 HK$0.254
0.091/& T 0.25478 7
Share price at granted date RELBHZRE HK$0.300 HK$0.600
0.3007& T 0.6007& 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$17.90 HK$32.40
17.907%& 7T 32.40/& 7T

Expected volatility (represents FEERRIE (1§52 2 8z
the 52-week weekly volatility) SRKE) 67.64% 110%
Options life B EE 10 years 10 years
104 106
Expected dividends FEHEIR B n/a n/a
FiEH TiE A

Risk-free interest rate (based on R s F) 2=

Exchange Fund Note) (BIEESEEHBEE) 0.38% 0.11%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(representing the 52-week weekly return on the Company’s
share). According to the dividend policy of the Company,
no dividend yield is adopted in the above valuation. There
was no service condition or market condition associated
with the share options granted.

T8 0900 T AR J8IB 4E MUE (J575 2 IR 52
BEH>SAER) MEE « REALD 2R
BEE  CAELERAEMREE o B8
B P48 11 AR B 2 PR TS 4 o0 43 1
o
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32. ACQUISITION OF INTANGIBLE ASSET THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 25 August 2014, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Worthy Victory Limited (“Worthy
Victory”) from an independent third party (the “Vendor A”). The
consideration of HK$30,000,000 has been satisfied by the issue
of the promissory note.

Worthy Victory is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and is wholly owned by the Vendor A.
It is principally engaged in holding the PRC operating rights of
a mobile game app of the name “Ninja in Barrel”.

Worthy Victory has not carried out any significant business
transactions on acquisition date. In the opinion of the directors,
the acquisition did not constitute an acquisition of business in
substance. The acquisition of the operating rights was then
considered as acquisition of assets through acquisition of
subsidiaries. Therefore, the acquisition was not accounted for as
a business combination in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRSs.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Worthy
Victory as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

32. ZBWEKHBARWBELEE

RZZB-NENAZTHRB  AEER
REBIYE=F(TEFF I KEWorthy
Victory Limited ([ Worthy Victory 1) 228 &
7 - {{{E30,000,000;8 TE U BEERTE
BT

Worthy Victory SRR B IR 22 8 BaE AL 3L
ZERABEHESFFEERE - HFE
RESFERDERERRX ABERE IF

Worthy VictoryFAUR S B HA S S T 1E M &
REBRS - EERA - WHEBELTHE
REEFKWESE - WBKEREmT
WRAZBUEHBLATMKBEE -
It WESEREE B BEREEAZR
EXFREBKEG -

HULEE B H - Worthy Victory 2 Al BI & &
REEZAFENT :

HK$000

FHET

Net assets acquired of Intangible asset WERTEEZFERE 30,000

Less: impairment B ORE =

Total consideration BB 30,000
Satisfied by: VST

— Promissory note —EHEE 30,000
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33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

33. BB A

On 17 November 2014, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Patalogue Limited (“Patalogue”) from
an independent third party (the “Vendor B”). The consideration
of HK$18,000,000 has been satisfied by the issue of the
promissory note.

Patalogue is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and is wholly owned by the Vendor B. It is principally
engaged in mobile application business. The acquisition of
Patalogue allows the Group to broaden the revenue base and
improve the profitability of the Group.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Patalogue as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

R-ZE-—mFE+—A+tH  xEETK
BBIE=ATEHRZ ) WRBIRELER
A7 ([Patalogue |) 2 EBR Az - RE
18,000,00058 7T LA B 177 5 AR AT ©

Patalogue BREBEMMRIL 2 ER AT
HELZZERERE HIERERBER
ERETK o IniBPatalogueE RN EE T IERE
HRWAEREAEREE 2 BREES -

MUREE B E - PatalogueZ Al BIEER A
BZAFENT :

HK$’000
FHBT

Intangible asset B EE 8,000
Other payable and accrued expenses Hitt e RIERETER (315)
Deferred tax liability EERIEEE (1,299)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RATEARZ AR FEEFE 6,386
Goodwill RS 11,614
Consideration was satisfied by the fair value of: ~ HEZEEAFEENZRE :

Promissory note 18,000

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of
the acquisition is as follows:

RBBBEIBSROFTMOT ¢

Cash consideration
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

RENE —
BB zRERRESEEY —

Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents

BeRBeEEN2BERAFHE —

Since the acquisition, the Patalogue contributed approximately
HK$251,000 to the Group’s revenue and approximately
HK$236,000 to the consolidated loss for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
period, the revenue and the loss of the Group would have been
approximately HK$1,550,000 and approximately HK$424,000,
respectively.

HUEEE1ER - PataloguesT & £9251,000
BLTEAEEWREKK236,0008 TEH
ECZ-NME+-A=+—BLHFEZHF
EF1E -

REBERBAMETZEH  AEBZW
=REED B A%1,550,000% T KkA
424,00058 7T °
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34.

144

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as

follows:

The Group

Financial assets

34. ¢@IA

(a) ZERITBE2EMT A

REREPBEEAZTERN Z2ERMT
AIREENT :

A EE

2014
—E—MF
Loans and

receivables

BEXR
e
HK$’000

TR

2013
—F—=
Loans and
receivables
EXK
FEU R IR
HK$’000
FHET

Trade and other receivables g 5 R EAENFIE 5,702 31,358
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIERTER 1,778 1,732
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 7,163 4,973

14,643 38,063

Financial liabilities

2014
—E-mEF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

R A
SEZ
EHMEE
HK$’000
FET

2013
—E-=5F
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R
FEZ
=K
HK$’000

Trade and other payables B R EMENTIE 10,430 10,646
Finance lease payables RS E RN FIE — 97
Promissory notes 7R B 43,000 —
Short-term loan SHAIE R 2,000 —

55,430 10,743

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

KREEZERARDLF
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial instruments by category (Continued)
The Company

Financial assets

34. €M I A(E)

2014
—E-DIF
Loans and
receivables
BRK
FEUW IR
HK$’000
FHET

(a) ZERDBZEMTAE)
RN T)

Loans and
receivables
BERER

FEU TR
HK$°000
FHEIT

Amount due from an associate B — BB E A R FIE 6,000 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURFH B A Bl FRIE 503,458 502,858
Other receivables and deposit paid Hitfel R BRI € 1,200 26,068
Cash and cash equivalents RERBLEEY 1,945 3,072
512,603 531,998

2014

—E-mF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
EiG: 31 DR bi7g: 51z )N
ez FTEZ
Financial liabilities AL =N Bl =R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Other payables HEAFRIE 2,067 5,138
Promissory notes TR EE 43,000 =
Short-term loan HAE K 2,000 =
47,067 5,138
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

146

(b) Financial risk management
Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are mitigated by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices described below.

(A) Credit Risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers. The impairment
losses on bad and doubtful debts account are within
management’s expectation.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
reporting period, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 20.

In respect of deposits with banks, the Group mitigates
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established credit ratings.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiBEBIZER AR A

34. €M I A(E)

(b) BIEREBERE
AEBR-—REBBEPAZEER
B RBESEBE SRR - ZF
Ja B R T 3P At iz 7 B B B A T TR IR
FEREHITAFRE

(A) EERE
RZE-—NME+=ZA=+—8 >
AEEEH 2GR EERREH
RRBYEFREBITEIMESR
AEBHBENEER  ERARTD
FEGEAUERARFREEHE
REMEEZREE -

HREZRAMEYRENS &
HERRETREGATEEZM
BEFENETEENMG - ZF
AETEETREFBEHEES
HIFIE 2 R K B Al 2 B EE
N NERZEEFZBERE
BRRBARZEFEERESHE
RECIREEN - EZRWFER
B3 HARE 2 HiBFT302180R A
FEEMN o —RIBRT » ANEH
WEEEFMSEAR ° FLRIE
RIFH ZBEBEDIRNEEREZ
FaRTA ©

FEBZFERREIRZIREFR
ZERFHERE - BEFEEMA
TERRRZENRARTHEER
BEBRERTE  EXERER
B -REJZREDEEER » IF
B EEAREHEERR

EBAEEAZES RAMEY
REEEFERBZE—SE
e B ER D B B MIEE20

BIBITHERME - AREEBR
EARFEEFRMBEEE
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)

(B)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the statement of financial position date) and
the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

The Group

2014
-5-1F
]
Contractual
undiscounted
cash flow
AHARE
BeREAE
HK$'000
T

More than
1 year but
less than
2years
#E-5
BHRTE
HK$'000
TR

Within

1 year or on
demand
=%
HK$'000
Thn

Carrying
amount

RaE
HK§'000
-7

More than
2years but
less than
5years
RERF
EHREE
HK$'000.
T

34. €M I A(E)

(b) MBEREE(F)

Carrying
amount

REE
HK$ 000

undiscounted

o

(B) HBELEE

RBETEREAEETERE
HREITEVREE AR - &
SEEERDES CHHARET
R -EABRHBABES -
DENSHIINEE mMAEELE
THRAZBEIRELAEERE
Z R e

AEBETENEEEREER
BeRLER  BERSBEHRE
HRE  REERERUENSED
BEa®ER  HEEEBHETHE
ERBEAY  AARBLRES
SitE AEBBRSEME
BEERBDESTEREERET
EXRE  BREFERRSMH
BRAMKEZER CHEESFUR
BEEMBEBEEEHC A
B EUARNEEHRER
HZRBEESHER -

TRAVNARERARREFTE
TRHEENSREPBEERAZ
FHEWEHA - MATIREF
WARBRBERE(BERASH
A 2R fid BT B R R - RS
Rz BHEMRRAE ZFE
50 URAEBE A AR A g%
Rz BREHAEEST

2013

g

Total
Contractual

More than
2 years but
less than
5years
BEmE
BHNEE
HKS 000
T

More than
1 year but
less than
2years
BE-F
EHRAE
HK$000
Thn

Within
1yearoron
demand
R-ER
HKS 000
TER

cash flow
ARARE
et %g

Trade and other payables 7R EfEE 10430 10,430 10430 - - 10,646 10,646 10,646 = =
Finance lease payable ~ BEMEENHE - - - - - g 9 9 = =
Promissory notes REZE 43,000 43,000 43,000 - - - — - — -
Short-term loan EHER 2,000 2,000 2,000 - - = = = = =

55,430 55430 55,430 - 10,743 10,743 10,743 - -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. M IA(E)
(b) BIEEBEEE ()
(B) BB LA ()
KA

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(B) Liquidity Risk (Continued)
The Company

2014
“3-PF
Total
Contractual
Carrying undiscounted
amount cash flow
ERRER
RenesE
HK$'000
Tn

2013
=
Total
Contractual
undiscounted
cash flow

More than
2 years but
less than

5 years
BBmE
BIRRE
HK§000
TR

More than
1 year but
less than

2 years
#a-%
BORWE
HK$'000
TR

More than
2 years but
less than
5years
AW
BOREE
HK$'000
TR

More than
1 year but
less than
2 years
Ba-%
BORTE
HK$'000
TR

Within

1 year oron
demand
R-%h
HK$'000
TER

Within

1 year or on
demand
R
FEX
HKS'000
T

Carrying
amount

BAE
HK$'000
747

A
HK$000
T

Other payables AEAFE 2,067 2,067 2,067 - - 5138 5138 5138 = =
Promissory notes ARZE 43,000 43,000 43,000 - - - - - - -
Short-term loan RHER 2,000 2,000 2,000 - - - - - — -
47,067 47,067 47,067 - - 5138 5,138 5138 - -
(C) Market Risk (C) m5EEE
(i) Currency risk (i) E¥EAR B
The business transactions of the Group conducted TEEBRFERNETZ EBR
during the year were mainly denominated and SEFEUARBERB TR

148

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

settled in either RMB or HKD. The Group currently
does not have hedging policy in respect of the
foreign currency risk. However, management
monitors the related foreign currency risk exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency risk exposure should the needs arise.

There are no significant monetary balances held
by the Group companies as at 31 December
2014 that are denominated in a non-functional
currency. Currency risk arises on accounts of
monetary assets and liabilities being denominated
in a currency that is not the functional currency.
However, this is not material to the Group as a
whole. Differences resulting from the translation of
financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

KREEZERARDLF

REE  AEERKBILES
BN BB 2 EORBUR o AR
- EEERYEERER
ZHEBMNERRE  WEBE
MEEFEPE R IMNERE S -

R-ZB-—NE+ZA=1+—
B AEESQARESE
LIEEEERTEZEARE
WERR - LEUBEER 2K
BIECEREERAEE
TE¥ERR  BRAKEEER
BMELFER - PEEZE
HUBHREBESLAEEZ
IIEHFREIBzEE -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 4. E@MTEE)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(C) Market Risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk
Apart from cash and cash equivalents, the interest
bearing loan which is at fixed rates, the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The Group’s income, expenses and
operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. Fluctuation
of market rates does not have significant impact
to operating cash flows accordingly no sensitivity
analysis has been presented.

(D) Fair Values

(i) Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value
All significant financial assets and liabilities are
carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2014 and
2013, except for the balances due to a director,
a related company and non-controlling interest
holders, which are interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms. Given these terms, it is not
meaningful to disclose their fair values.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in this
entirety.

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debt.

(b) BIIEEBSERE (4F)
(C) HE/E ()

(i) FI=EFE
BRESLRBRESEEYRER
FFEERMERI  REENM
BEANHEEERAGEGE - &
EBZWA - BXRELR
EREABLEBIATEF
REFE o MIBFREEHE
ERETBEITEEATE
WEZ IO o

(D) 2\F{E
(i) g%%ﬂ¥ﬁﬂ%2§ﬂl

R-ZE—NOER-_F—=F
+ZA=+—-H  IBEKX
cHMEEREBNRERND
FTEIEBERER 2S5
iR RN —BESFIER
BN XBEEQARARE
BRENENEEREZEE
ARIEEREEAIRS - BEE
NREARSE AT EETEE
HE  ERZERT  BE
BENFETESE -

ZNHERBRERE (B D FER
ENEREES B ANERE - T
BEHEELAVFEIEBERNR
ERBMABBEMERE

35. EXERER

FEEERERACTRER  NREAE
EREFRZRSECESEELE  tMEE
P e K AR B 2 B K RIS EE U
RESSENACEME  #HERRRAE
EHRURERLMESTAEAZE

AEEBERERRN R EELEREE
DRSS KRREHER T TEHE RS
BEKF R FE AR TR 2 4 B K R

BoBESTE  THREEHERREHY
BARGEBEHAR -

REFVARELER  FEEHTHE
ARFRGTREEHE BMRREEE
R BITHBRONUHEEE - LU ER -
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The Group manages capital by regularly monitoring its current
and expected liquidity requirement rather than using debt/
equity ratio analysis.

36. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments and arrangements
As lessee
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
lease falling as follows:

35. EXEREE (&)

AEEEBERNEREBARARREE
{%%;J;Eiiﬁzli  MIRAER, R
14 o

36. &iE

(a) EEHEARRRZH
TERAMA
R-ZE-OF+=-A=+—R0 4%
M 2 ELAR 5 AR 4518 B HE B9 A AT R A
EHERARRKEEERMFEDT ¢

2014 2013

—E-mF =—F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Within one year —FR 3,205 3,564
In the second to fifth years BEFRERF 8,036 16,202
11,241 19.766

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 4 years (2013: 2 to
5 years). The leases did not include any extension options.
None of the leases include any contingent rentals.

As lessor

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

—FRx
E_FERFERE

Within one year
In the second to fifth years

AEERZERBELEHESH 2N
R2EBA - ZEHE-RALHH

—ENE(ZE-ZF . ZF8RHF)
HETEEETMEEEERE - HOM
THIFAEARAEE o

ERHEA

R=-ZE—WE+=A=+—H8 K&
B HAFREASZ BN AT
EHEARRFRESERTIENT :

2014
—E-mF

2013
—g—=

HK$'000
TR

HK$°000
TR
1,700 —

1,700 =
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36. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

37. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH

Capital commitment

capital commitment:

Contracted but not provided for

— Capital injection of a subsidiary

36. AiE(#E)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following

ERTEREE
— WEBREEE

(b)

BAEYE
RIE—NE+ZA=+—8 K&
EELULTEARRE :

2014 2013
—E-DIF

—Fg—=
HK$'000
FHERT

HK$’000
TR

7,000 —

RELATED PARTIES

(a) Key management personnel compensation

(b)

(c)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid

employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

The Group

(a)

AEH

2014

—E2-lmF
HK$’000
FET

7. ERFEAETR G R

FTEEBABZHE
REBFEEEAESMWE (BIEKES
B NADREE S BRI
FiEEENETREFREEZSH) N
T

The Company

i N/NE
2014
—E-—MF
HK$’000
TExT

FEx FEx

Short-term employees EHESRER
benefits 1,293 2,118 1,101 1,548
Post-employment benefits ~ RKER 18 56 18 —
1,311 2,174 1,119 1,548

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

6(b)).

Transactions with other related parties

Other than those transactions disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has no
transactions with other related parties during the year

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Other related party balances

Other than those balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand except otherwise
stated, the Group has no other balance with related parties

as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(b)

(c)

MERBEDTAIETRAJ(RKEE
6(b)) °

BREMBEEALRS
BRERSMBHRRAMBIBREZRS
o AEBBE-Z-NFER-Z
—=ZFtZA=t-HILFEREH
fEEEALRS -

SLEMBRE A + 2 AR

BRER S MRS RaR H B8 PRIl B 2 =2
E & r(REER  REREERE
&) BRESHHP  ARER=F
—MER=—F-=F+=-A=+—4
BB LA EEREE A T 2 KRR o
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38. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

152

a) Very substantial disposal of 51% shareholding interest
ry 9

in Fountain City Holdings Limited

On 28 December 2012, the Company and the Vendor,
have agreed on the exercise by the Company of the Put
Option of Fountain City Holdings Limited (the “Disposed
Company”) to put back the Sale Shares to the Vendor at
the Put Option Price of HK$58,650,000 as the Vendor had
acknowledged that the Company was loss making.

The Disposal was approved by the Shareholders at
the EGM held on 26 August 2013. Accordingly, the
Completion shall take place on or before 24 February
2014 which is 180 days after the Disposal was approved
by the Shareholders and the Option Exercise price shall
be satisfied by the Vendor to the Purchaser on the same
day. However, the Vendor has failed to effect payments of
the Option Exercise Price and the Loans pursuant to the
Agreement and the Verbal Agreement.

After negotiations with the Vendor and the Guarantor,
the parties entered into a deed of settlement pursuant to
which the Vendor and the Guarantor jointly and severally
covenant to the Purchaser that they shall effect payment of
the option exercise price and the Loans in the aggregate
amount of HK$64,894,000 by four equal instalment
payments of HK$16,223,500 each with the first instalment
payment to be made on or before 24 September 2014, the
second instalment payment to be made on or before 24
December 2014, the third instalment payment to be made
on or before 24 March 2015 and the fourth payment to be
on or before 24 June 2015.

On 30 December 2014, the Vendor has only effected
partial payment of HK$6,000,000 out of the aggregate
amount of HK$64,894,000 pursuant to the Settlement
Deed.

After negotiations with the Vendor and the Guarantor,
the parties have reached a settlement relating to the
overdue of the outstanding balance of the Settlement Sum
of HK$58,894,000 (the “Outstanding Settlement Sum”)
and a supplemental deed (the “Supplemental Deed”)
was entered into among the Purchaser, the Vendor and
the Guarantor on 20 March 2015, pursuant to which the
Vendor and the Guarantor jointly and severally covenant to
the Purchaser that the Outstanding Settlement Sum shall
be paid and settled by two equal instalment payments of
HK$29,447,000 each, payable on or before the expiration
of six months and twelve months from the date of the
Supplemental Deed respectively.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiBEBIZER AR A
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38. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 38. FARMEEERER(AE)

(a) HERRWERERD T Z51%K 15

a) Very substantial disposal of 51% shareholding interest
ry 9

in Fountain City Holdings Limited (Continued)

The settlement was reached after arm’s length negotiations
between the Company, the Vendor and the Guarantor.
In light of the global financial crisis and economic
slowdown, which has adversely affected the ability of
the Vendor and Guarantor to perform their respective
obligations under the Settlement Deed, and the fact that
the Vendor has made a payment of HK$6,000,000 on
30 December 2014 reassures that the Vendor has the
intention to settle the Outstanding Settlement Sum. The
Company has decided to not include interest accrued on
the Outstanding Settlement Sum in order to speed up
the negotiation procedures. The Company believes the
entering into of the Supplemental Deed will save legal and
professional costs, however, the Company reserve it’'s
rights to commence legal proceedings against the Vendor
and/or the Guarantor if they fail to honour their payment
obligations under the Supplemental Deed. All the Directors
including the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that the terms of the Supplemental Deed are
fair and reasonable, are on normal commercial terms and
are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Company will provide periodic updates by
way of announcement regarding the Disposal as and when
appropriate.

Detail refer to the Company’s announcements dated 8
January 2013, 26 August 2013, 24 March 2014, 20 March
2015 and the Company’s circular dated 8 August 2013.
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38. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

154

(CONTINUED)

(b) Lapse of the acquisition of Mass Apex Limited

As disclosed in the Company announcement dated 4
December 2012, the Company, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Fame Network Limited (the “Purchaser”) to
acquire the entire issued share capital of the Mass Apex
Limited which principally engaged in the trading of raw
food material business in Hong Kong , from Mr. Ma Chun
Loi, (the “Vendor I") at a consideration of HK$68,000,000.

As of 8 July 2013, some of the conditions precedent to the
Acquisition had not been fulfilled, after negotiation between
the Purchaser and the Vendor |, the Board decided
that the Long Stop Date would not be further extended,
accordingly, the Sale and Purchase Agreement lapsed with
effect from 5:00 p.m. on 8 July 2013.

Upon the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Vendor |
shall refund the sum of HK$2,000,000, being the deposit
paid by the Purchaser to Vendor |, despite the Company
has repeatedly demanded for the return of the Deposit, the
Vendor | failed to return the Deposit, upon the legal advice
that the Company has obtained from its solicitors, the
Purchaser has commenced legal action against the Vendor
| at the Court of First Instance in the High Court of HKSAR
on 30 October 2013 to claim for return of the Deposit.

On 11 December 2013, the Purchaser and the Vendor |
entered into a deed of settlement pursuant to which the
Vendor | undertook to refund the Deposit by 10 monthly
instalments by issuing ten post-dated cheques. On 19
December 2013, as the first cheque dated 11 December
2013 was honoured, pursuant to the deed of settlement,
the Purchaser has filed a notice of discontinuance with the
Court of First Instance of the High Court of the HKSAR.

On 27 February 2015, the Company has instructed a legal
representative to issue a demand letter to the Vendor |
in relation to the breach of the Settlement Deed and the
outstanding balance of HK$1,200,000. If the Vendor | does
not agree to the demand, the Company will reserve it’s
rights to commence legal proceedings against the Vendor |
to enforce its rights.
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38. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Lapse of the acquisition of Mass Apex Limited

(c)

(Continued)

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 26
November 2012, 4 December 2012, 27 December 2012,
25 January 2013, 8 February 2013, 8 March 2013, 8 April
2013, 8 May 2013, 7 June 2013, 9 July 2013, 18 July
2013, 2 August 2013, 7 August 2013, 18 October 2013, 30
October 2013, 11 December 2013 and 19 December 2013.

Rights Issue on the basis of one rights share for every
two shares held

On 12 December 2014, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$84 million, before expenses, by issuing
280,068,452 new shares (the “Rights Shares”) to the
qualifying shareholders of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.30 per Rights Share by way of rights issue
on the basis of one Rights share for every two shares
held on 23 December 2014. 280,068,452 rights shares
have been issued on 9 February 2015. The net proceeds
of the Group from the rights issue were approximately
HK$81,000,000.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 12
December 2014 and 6 February 2015 and the Company’s
prospectus dated 14 January 2015 for details.
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38. FARMEHEAREE A

38.

39.

40.

41.

156

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Repayment of Promissory Notes
I.  The Company repaid in full the P. Note 2 on 10
February 2015 in the amount of HK$20,147,945.21.
This amount includes the principle sum of
HK$20,000,000 plus accrued interest of 30% per
annum from 1 February 2015 to 9 February 2015 of
HK$147,945.21.

Il. The Company repaid in full the P. Note 4 on 13
February 2015 in the amount of HK$18,000,000 and
the noteholder agreed to waive any accrued interest
payable to him.

lll. The Company repaid in full the P. Note 5 on 16
February 2015 in the amount of HK$5,197,260. This
amount includes the principle sum of HK$5,000,000
plus accrued interest of 24% per annum from 17
December 2014 to 16 February 2015 of HK$197,260.

LITIGATION

Save as disclosed on this consolidated financial statements,
there are no legal claims on the Company which should be
disclosed in the financial statement.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been re-presented to conform
to current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2015.
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